HOLLY TOWNSHIP
PROPOSED AGENDA
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
November 19, 2025 6:30 PM
Holly Township Hall (Upstairs)
102 Civic Dr. Holly, Michigan 48442

CALL TO ORDER — PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL: George Kullis  Karin Winchester  Jennifer Ryan Derek Burton
Ryan Matson Michael McCanney Richard Kinnamon

AGENDA APPROVAL

CONSENT AGENDA:
L. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes — October 20, 2025.
2. Approval of Financial Statement — October 2025.
3. Approval of Bills for Payment - November 2025
4. Receipt of Routine Reports:
A. N.O.C.F.A. Minutes — October 28, 2025.
B. Planning Commission Minutes —~ October 8, 2025.
C. Building Permits — October 2025.
D. Treasurer’s Annual and Quarterly Report — NA.
5. Communications: None,

All items listed under *Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine, and non-controversial, do not require discussion by the Township
Board and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion. If discussion is desired on an item, that item will be
removed from the consent agenda and will automatically be moved to the last item under New Business.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: FY 2026 Community Development Block Grant Application.
PRESENTATIONS: Maner Costerisan on Holly Township 2024-2025 Audit.

REPORTS: TRUSTEES CLERK TREASURER SUPERVISOR

PUBLIC COMMENT on Agenda Items Only. Members of the public can address the Board, on agenda items only, once
recognized by the Supervisor. Comments are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. The board may extend this time by a
majority vote. Prior to addressing the board, members of the public shall state their name and address for the record. A
second public comment is available after New Business for all other comments. Thank you for your cooperation,

OLD BUSINESS — None.

NEW BUSINESS

I. June 30, 2025 Audited Financial Statements,

2. Auditor Contract for June 30, 2025, 2026 and 2027.

3. PY 2026 Community Development Block Grant Application — Proposed Resolution 2025-18.

4. 2026 North Oakland County Fire Authority Budget — Proposed Resolution 2025-19,

5. Proposed Amendment to Holly Township Code of Ordinances Chapter II Township Board, Article

[T Officers and Employees, Division 2 Benefits, Section 2-83(a) Benefits.

6. Proposal for Short/Long Term Disability for Employees excluding Elected Officials.
7. Draft Facility Use Policy.
8. Holiday Office Hours.



9. Consider Closed Session to Discuss Attorney/Client Privileged Information per MCL 15.268
(1)(h).

PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT



Holly Township
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Minutes of October 15, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Clerk Winchester called the Regular Meeting of the Holly Township Board
of Trustees to order at 6:30 pm located at the Holly Township Offices (Upstairs), 102 Civic
Drive, Holly, Michigan 48442.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

Members Present:

George Kullis, Karin Winchester, Jennifer Ryan, Delek Burton, Ryan Matson Michael
McCanney and Richard Kinnamon

Members Absent; None,

Others Present:

Lisa Hamaeh, Township Attorney.
AGENDA APPROVAL

> Motion by Siipervisor Kullis to approve the agenda as amended. Supported by Clerk
Winchester. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 7/0.

Added Holly Moose as business #5 and moved #5. Consider Closed Session to Consider
Attorney/Client Information.

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes — September 17, 2025.
2. Approval of Financial Statement — September 2025.
3. Approval of Bills for Payment — October 2025
4. Receipt of Routine Reports:
A. N.O.C.F.A. Minutes — September 23, 2025.
B. Planning Commission Minutes — September 10, 2025,
C. Building Permits — September 2025,
D. Treasurer’s Annual and Quarterly Report — September 30, 2025.
5. Communications:
A. Letter and Resolution Dated September 14, 2025 from Holly Township Parks re: Stiff
Mill Pond and Dam,

> Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve the Consent Agenda. Supported by Trustee
Burton, A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The meotion carried 7/0.



Hotly Township Board of Trustees Regular Meeting — Minutes of October 15, 2025 Page 2 of 3

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.

PRESENTATIONS: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT — None.

OLD BUSINESS — None.

NEW BUSINESS

1. 123NET Metro Act Permit.

> Motion by Clerk Winchester to move approve 123NET Bilateral Metro Act Permit.
Supported by Trustee Kinnamon. A roll call vote was taken, All present voted yes. The
motion carried 7/0.

2. BS&A Cloud Software Contract.

> Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve the BS&A Cloud Software Contract.

Supported by Trustee Matson. A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The
motion carried 7/0,

The Board discussed the township facility needs of the Holly Area Youth Assistance, Dickens
Festival and the Holly Moose. The current policy does not allow use of facilities, except by the
Boards and Commissions. It was the consensus of the Board that the policy needs to be changed.

3.

6.

Holly Area Youth Assistance.
The Board took No Action.
Dickens Festival.

The Board took No Action.

. Holly Moose.

The Board took No Action.

Consider Closed Session to Discuss Attorney Client Privileged Information.

> Motion by Supervisor Kullis to go into closed session to discuss attorney/client

privileged information according to MCL 15.268 (1) (h). Supported by Trustee
Kinnamon. A rol call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 7/0.

» Motion by Supervisor Kallis to go back into open session Supported by Clerk

Winchester. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 7/0.



Holly Township Board of Trustees Regular Meeting — Minutes of October 15, 2025 Page 3 of 3

The Board took No Action.
PUBLIC COMMENT
No Public Comment,

ADJOURNMENT ~ Supervisor Kullis adjourned the meeting at 8:35 pm.

Karin Winchester, Clerk






00" 0 go"o 00" 0 060 oo NOIZIIAL ¥ S€AS ‘SENG 000-0E8-2LT-TOT
0000t 0070 00-0 56°GLL S8TELL ALTENDES TYIDOS 000-STL-ZLT-I0T
00°C0T 000 go-o P8 LET'OT P8 LET'OT SATEYTES 000-Z0L-ZLT-TOT
I MOLWILSINIWAY "OSIA¥EANS - ZLT adag
¥S°ZE FYLTIR'59 5 68L°L 85°095°1¢ 00" 8LE ‘96 YOSIA¥EANS - T.T adag Teaol
00°0 00°000°T 00" 0 000 00-000°T SHSNIAXE ? SDNISAOT 000-T98-TLI-TOT
0070 00°000°T 0070 0go 90°000°1 INTHISENTAITE FOVATIH 000~098-TLT-TOT
08797 00°860°T 000 00 20v 00°00S’T NOILIINL 3 SHE0nS ‘§3nc 000-0F8~-TATI~TOT
ZTEEE 9L OER 'Y 96°£5¢ [ZAR At 00°Sb3 ‘9 ALI¥MADES TYIONOS 000-GTL-TLT-TOT
EETEE 00°00Z°¢E 00" 00Y 00°00%°T 00008’k LNIHAYE I00 1d0 HITYIH 000-STL~-TLI-TOT
EE'EE B2 "8B8% %S BO9£879 ZETPYELE DO"EEO ‘T8 SATHYTIYS 000-Z0L-TLI~TOT
HOSIA¥EANS - TLT adeg
LB 6T 60709L°2T 00°0 16°¥91°€ 007526781 SEHLSNYEL JIHSMMOL - 10T 1deg Te3ol
0c°0 agroos 00" 0 000 00008 IHANESENEWNITY IOVITIN 000-098-T0T-10T
0070 00700071 oo'o 000 000007t NOILINL ¥ S=ENS ‘SANG 000-0EB-TOT-10T
¥6° 1T 607008 0070 T6"vee 00°S20°T ALTHENDES TYIDOS 000-STL-TOT-10T
v6°1Z 00°09F 70T 00" 0 0o"okE’E 00°00% ‘£ STIMYTYS 000-20.~T0T~T0T
SHYISNEL dIHSHMOL - ToT 3deg
S3INATPUsdXy
vE"9 20 E96 296 'Y £ TEZLLST 86 0E3'TFE 00 FEL 'FOE’S STANTATY TYIOL
FF°9 Z0TE96°296 ¥ €% TZL LST B6 0E8'TVE 00 FEL'FOE’S TEIEANFDS - 000 adeg Teion
00°0 00" SLL BV 000 0070 007 SLL BET FONYIYE N0 WOMI YRASNYEL 06E-665-000-101
00°0 00 LEF'2FO°E 06070 0o°o 00" LEpZV0’E SUNOY J0 ITYS KOWI SAHED0Ed 000-969-~000-T0T
00" o 00" 000007 00" 0 000 007000 00¥ SIISSY I0 ATYS CO0-£69-000-TOT
00°¢C 00" 0§B'E 0070 0070 00°088°'¢ SNOISSIWHOD 000-6L5-000-T0T
00°0TT  (60708%) 600 007 05% 00° 00§ SNOINYTIEISIH 000-8L9-000-T0T
000 00°0 Gg°0 000 000 INIHAYS FONVAQY YIDON 00C~LL95-000-T0T
€ETEE 00°000°TT 0oT00s T 00° 000’9 00°00078T ISYIT LNEWINYIED ONTATING 000-~TL9-000-T0T
gEee 00 vE8 ET 05 08r’‘S 00 ez '1Z 00°58L°59 INFAISHOSHITE IS0D 31440 SNIATING 000-0L9~000-10T
CE"6E 08 ELT’ST 9z eiL’e 0z 928’6 00°00C'sZ ISTYIINT 000~539-000-T0T
00°9¢ 00°¢61 00°%9 00"80% 06°00€ STYIYELYN CILNIEd % SITI0D 000-TE£9-000-T0T
EE°TrE  {(00°0T8'T! 00006 007098’z 00 08L STEI ONINNYIZ 000-0£9-000~10T
se Lz 00 08T b 00 ¢ 00°06S°T 06 0SL’S SAEI ONINIR 000~629-000-10T
00°001 00°0 oo 00-0sL 007 0SL 833 ONINOZ 000-82%-000~T0T
TLLT 00" LIL’'6%G 00°£8E‘BTT 00 E€BE'BTI 007 00T 899 SANNIATE TETUYHS FTIVLS 000-%L5-000~TOT
000 007008°T 00" 0 a0 o 00°0G8‘T NOIIY¥ZITIGYIS AIIROWNOD TYIOT 000-EL5-000-T0T
000 00°000°2ET 0070 0070 0oTocozZET Wd¥Y - INVYD TVEdIdEd 000-825-000~T0T
0070 000599 00" 0 00°0 0070599 9800 - INIWIOTEAZA AIINOWHOD 000-225-000-T0T
0T"0 89°0F5 LG ZE'8S A Y 00700085 SUEd SESIHONYYS 000-LLE-000-TOT
9008 06°9LL°2T 03°500°SZ 0T S0E°TS 00°Z80°%9 ROTIOETTOD ‘TOOHDS 000-8¥F—000-T0T
0z el po TFTLY GLTRLE 9L LLL'BZT 00°6T6"CLT H3d FAILVEISINIWAY 000-LY¥-000-T0T
00°0 00°005°T 00°0 00" 0 G0"005°T LSTYIINI ¥ SATITYRIAS 006-SYF-000-TOT
0c-o 0c"0C8’T 0070 00°0 00" 008°'T SH¥EAL HWMOH ETIICSON 0C0-¥EFP-000-10T
0c-o 00 590°L8F 00" 6 0070 00°590°L8F NOILDETIOD XYL INIDEND 000-20F-000-10T
TYEENED - 000 3dag
SenUsATY
anod TYEENED - T0T pund
aq3sn (TYHEONEY) TYHECHN {ISYIEDEQ) HASYIEONI {TYREONEY) TWREON 139009 qEANENY NOILaraosaqg HIERON TO
1oag 3 IDNYIVE S<0¢/TE/GT HINOW GZ0T/TE/0T 9¢c-GZ0E
ETAYIIVAY ¥0Z ALIAILIDY EONVTYE IR

T/t 1abeg

q20T/TE/0T ONICNE aoIyad

dIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥Od LH0ddyd TYNLIANISXHE ONY ZONIATH

drysumog ATTOH :4¢

NIg¥d :Xasn

WY 1 T:60 SANZ/BT/TT



0070 007 000°% 00" 0 0070 00°000°T SHSNIIXE 3 ONIDHTOT 000-198~55Z~10T
000 0070001 000 0070 00°000°T INTHISENEAITY I9YITIR 000-098-552-10T
EE EF 00" 058 007 6EZ 007059 00700671 NOTIINL 5 S8€4S ’sAnd 000-0£8-652-T0T
PETEE 8y ZF8°T LETGSE 257 12T 00 F9E°Y ALI¥NDAS TYIDOS 000-8TL-SGZ-T0T
£€°€E oo-posg 00" 00T 00" 00F 00°00Z°T REYTYS AINGIQ 000-€0L-662-T10T
c€etee 00 F9E‘9E eToai=l ARl 4 00°28T’8T GO9S PS SEATHYTIYS 000-204-562-10T
ROILYIISINIRGY YTINSYTLL -~ §52 3d=d
vETIE y8 121°29 FOT865 L ST L8962 00 608716 ¥TEIASYIML - £6Z 1d3ad TRIeL
GO0 00700071 [oTehv} 00" 0 00700071 SASNIIXT 7 ONISQ0T 000-T198-£52-10T
oo 00°000°T 00" 0 000 00°000°1 INTHISHATHITT FOVITIN 000-098-£52-T01
£L791 0o epZ T 00°6£2 00" 162 00°005°T NOILIAL ¥ SE€OS ‘SANG 000-0£8-£62~T0T
£E°€E 91 ¥81T’% 96 ZZS ¥BTI60°C 00"9L2°9 ALT¥NOES TYIDOS 000~STL-£52-T0T
EETEE 89°889 %5 BO"SE£879 ZETPRE LT 00 EE07ER SAIYNYTYS 000-Z0L-£52-10T
¥IIOSYTAL - £67 3daqg
59°1 60 FLE'T 0ot o 16°0F 00°51%°2 MITARE IO q¥v¥od - Lvz 3deq TEa0l
00" 0 fa[vlls] 00°0 0gto co 0 SISNESXE 3 OMNIDAOT 000-T98-LbE-10T
0070 00°00E oo [oTehal} 00" 00¢g INIHISANTNITE IOYITIN 000—-088-LFZ-TOT
000 Q000§ 0oo 000 0070065 NOILINL ¥ $€0§ ‘5304 0D0-0E8~LFE-TOT
€52 50°2F1 0070 1672 00°STT ALTHADES TYIDOS 000-STL-LPEZ-TOT
£5°¢ 00" Z9% ‘T 009 00 - 8¢ 0eto0s T SEIUVTIYS 000-20L-LFE-TO0T
MATATY J0 QU¥0E - L¥Z 3daq
Z8 1€ PSTGT6 ‘LY FE FIS°S 8L LSE‘ZT 00 ELZOL NOIIVNISININGY ¥HITD - 91z 3ded Te3oL
0e0 0CT000°T apo 000 00" 000°T SESNAAXT 3 DNISUOT 000-198-91¢~101
000 00°000°T 09 000 00°000°T INTRISYOTHTII TOVATIR 000-098-91E-10T
L9 Q0 00F ‘T 0oto 007 Q0T 00°006°T NOTILIOL 3 S490$ ‘$3nd 000-0£8-9T2-10T
£EUef ZETPITE 7k G6E 891857 00°SVL'Y ALTUNDES TYIDOS 000-$TL-9T2-T0T
LT EE 00008 00 00T 00" 00F 00" 00271 EAVIVS ALndId 000-£0L~8T2-T0T
EE €L ZETGG 0% 76 8%0°S 89°5LZ 0% 00" LZ8°09 SHLEYTES 000~20L-912Z-T0T
NOTIVIISININGY ¥¥1I0 - 9Tz 3dadg
L8 2E ¥8°L79 719 PO'6SE’L 9T I8T°0€E 00608716 MIETO - §Tz 3deg TeaoL
(890} GL 90071 000 (5L79) 00°000°T SESNIAKE ¥ SNIDAOT 000-198-5T2~-10T
060 007 000°T 00°0 000 007 000°T INTRASYNGHIAE FIVTTIIH 000-098-5T2~10T
Z1° 0% ST BYL 00790 SL TSL Q0" 005°T ROILINL % $8AS ‘SINA 000-0£8-5T2-T0T
£EEE 9T %8T’¥% 86" ZZS 78 T60°Z 00°9L2°9 ALTMADES TYIDOS 000-STL-GTZ-T0T
€ EE 897889 ‘¥S 80°GEB’9 ZETRFELE 00" €£0°Z8 SATEYIYS 000-20L-ST2-T0T
wga7o - §1¢ 3dsa
00°001 00 0 0070 6E°ET6 0T BETETE 0T I HOIVEISINIRGY 90SIA¥adns - ziot 1deq TR3og
000 00°0 0070 0o o 0070 SUSNIINT 3 INIDAQT 000-158-ZLT-10T
000 GO0 0070 000 0070 INFWASHNGHITY FOYITIN 000-098-ZLTI~T0T
seInlTpuadx
aNOd TYIENES - 10T pund
aIsn (TYNEONAY) TERE0ON {(ISYTIDHA) FSYANONI ([ TYWSONEY) TYREON LEDONE JHANTNY NOIIATHDSIA MAGHAN TS
1909 3 FONYTYE SE0T/TE/0T HINCH ST0Z/1E/0T 9g-5202
FTIVTICAY HOE ALIAILDY AONYTEE LA
5z02/TE/0T ONIGNET COTHIA drysusol ATIOH =€
NI¥GYY 1ISS5Q
zZ1/Zz 9beg ATHENMOI ATIOH ¥OI IH0dEd TEQLTANTIXET ANV IONEATY Wd LT:60 SZTOZ/FT/TT



000 000 , ) 000 060 00°0 QN0E INTWIACHANI Q9O 0L SUZISHWHL POP-S66-ZLZ-T0T
000 00" L59'EBS'E 000 ocro C0°"L6%'EBS'E aNOd IDE00¥d TYIIAYD 0% T0%-S66-2L2-T0T
0o o 00 0 000 o[ Rs] 6C'0 FONY'IVE ANOZ Ol ¥EISNYEL 065-565-2L2-T0T
000 000 , 000 00" 0 000 FONYAQY — a¥s TNII Ol SHISNPHEL 90Z-566-2LZ-T0T
000 o 0%800¢C o0 0o o 00" QK8 ‘00T TIVH JIHSNMOI — FDIA¥ES 1493 000-166-2L7Z-T0T
000 000 0o’ o 0070 00°0 AYIIN0O TYIIAYD 000~TL6-ZL2-T0T
25" L6 00" 09¢ 000 Q0 O0BT’'FT 00°00S‘FT EONYYNSNT 000~856-2L2-T0T
fa[olls] 00" 008 6o'o 000 00°00§ SOOBNYTIIIS I 000-556-2.2-10T
L9°0F 05°9L0’E 00"€50°T 0G°ETH’'T 00°005’¢€ SEOIION T¥oET 000-006-2L2-T0T
ZL°96 wv.NwN~ 0G0 , FSTLELYL 00 000’8 NOILIAL % SEnS ‘sEna Q00-0E8-ZLZ~TOT
T8°LT E1°€5L°S Le sve’1 LB BRE'T 000007 NOIL¥DIJIACD FONYNIQHO 000-028-2LZ-TOT
EL60T {E6°LT6'E) LT"58572¢E £6°LIB'EY 00" 0000k EONYNEINIYR 93LOEROD 000-918-2L2-10T
86" 1€ SEZTO'PE ST FIP'TIT §9°LB6'ST oo-oo0os XFNE0LIY 000-F08-ZLZ-T0T
68°0 Hm.NomHmm oo 0 00" 00§ 197200795 SADTAYES TILOTEINGD 000-208-2L2~T0T
000 00005 6T 000 00" 0 00" 0068671 ¥OLIanY/INYINDODOY 000-T08-ZL2-T0T
80" 8¢ 98°8.1'62 Er-168°E F1°128’8 00" 0C0 ‘sE SESNIANZE ONIIVIZIO 000-0FL-2LZ~TO0T
00" 0 00" 0 oo o 00°0 000 ONIQNOE B¥YD HITYZEH INSWTEILES 000-LEL-2L2-T0T
bL70Z YE 685 5L ET°9T9°% 93 9LLET 00799866 FONVEASNI HJI'T/HITYIH 000~0ZL-Z2LE-TOT
787 0% 8% °SL0 08 £6°860°CE ZST60PET 00°S8Y'EY NOISNTd 000~-0TL-ZL2-T0T
SADIAYNES TWIEANIS - zoz 3dsqg
0L GE 00" 6L8'F8 0§ 088711 00" TZLLy 00°0007EET SIASNIAXE SNIIVIIIO ¥4daw -~ 19z 3dag Teaor
QL-S€ 00" 6LB'¥8 057058711 00°TZT'LE 00°000°2ZET SHSNAAXE ONIIYNAAO ¥auy 000-0%L—-29Z-T0T
SUSNEIXYE ONIIWYEIO ¥dEY - .97 adaq
€0°0¢ ST 060°LY 0s-ree’s 5L°602702 0DT00E‘LY SEILYEd0Ed JIHSMMOL - 597 3dag Teiol
81" 0% 807216 'vE 62 FEB’E Z6 LBO'ST 0000008 SUIVATY 3 FONYNIINIVH 000-0EE-592-T0T
BG 0C £8796% ‘4 £L708L LT EDE’E 00°00B0T SAIIITILO 000-026-592-T0T
B6"LZ ¥YE 189 % 8% 909 99°818°T 00700579 ANOHAETIL 000-0S8-597—T0T
SEILYEJO9d dIBSMMOL - 597 3dag
000 00T000°ss 000 000 00°000°5S SNOTIDETE - zoz 3dag Teaol
oo corooo’‘oe 000 00°0 00000702 SESNEIXT ONIIVIHA0 000~0%L-28Z-TOT
00°0 00°0C0’sE 00°0 000 007000 'SE SHIYYTYS NOIIORIH 000~80L-29Z-T0T
SNOILDEIE - zaz 3daq
T8°9 ST SLTLE SLTPYOT SL'FEZL'T 00000 0% LNTHEDHOINE 3q00 - 19z adeqg Teiol
T8°9 GZ'GLZ LE SLUWYS T GL pzL'2 000001 0F SEOIANES ATIOVEINOD 000-2Z08-T9Z-T0T
INEWEJYOING 940D - T8z 3deqg
15722 00-L28786 00°0TL'8Z 0C°0TL’BT DO LES LZT DNISSHSSY ~ (52 3deq Telol
15722 00" LZ8’8B6 00" 0TL’8E 00°0TL'8Z 00 LES'LZT SHEOIANES JITIDWIINGD 000-208-.52-T0T
ONISSEASSY - £g7 adeq
z5°ZE 8¥-958°Z¥ LB 6EZ’S 26°£59°02 00" 0TS €9 NOIIWELSINIHAY YHINSYIIL - 57 adeg Teaol
soaxnyTpusdxg
QNNd TYYENES - 10T pung
agEsn (THIONEY) TYREON (ISYTIOHI) HSYHMONI (TYEONEY) TYWHON LE9Q0E JAANTHRY NOILdTINDSI] HIGHAN 7I9
1908 % EONYIYE SZ0Z/TE/QT HINOKW SzZozZ/1E/0T 9g-520¢
FTTFIIYAY 4od ALIATIIOY FONYTYE Ik
G20Z/TE/0T SNIANE gOIvAEd drysumoy ATToH :ga
NIMTA I28n
ZI/¢ :abeg

dIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0d IdCcddyd HUALIANEAXH NV HANIATY

WY L1760 SZQZ/FT/TT



T6°LT 28°888°6% LS LTL 81" €259 00" 2Tb ‘o€ NOILVELSINIAQY ONINOZ - z0. 3dag Teaol
000 00008 00° 0 0070 007008 SASNIAXT ¥ SNISUOT 000-T9B-Z0L-TOT
00°0 00°00% (o1¢lh) QG0 00°00% INENISHNARIAY FOYIATIH 060-098-20L-T0T
0070 00006 6o 0070 00°00¢% NOILIAL 3 S4ns “S3nd 000-DEB-E0L-TOT
G0 %I DS LVE'ZZ 000 0g-g59°c co-coo‘se SADIAYES QEIDTAINOD D00-208-Z0L-10T
EE"EE 00" 80% 0018 00 v0T 00219 ALTHODES THIDOS 000-STL-Z0L-T0T
£E7EE ZETELE’S £9°999 897999 °¢ 00" 000°8 SATYYINS 000-20L-20L-T0T
NOILVIISININAY SNINQZ - 2oL 3dag
99" £7 69798 2% a0 Z9% 1£°08E 797 00" LEZ B9 ONINNYTd - 1oL 3deqg Te3ol
0G0 00008 0070 000 007005 INFRASENENITE SOV TIN 000-098-T0L-101
TZ st L8'L%S a0 o £1°25% 00°000°T NOILIOL 3 SEAS “$Hnda 000-0£8-T0L-TOT
€698 {EL7L0E°S) 00" 28y SLTLOETL 00700072 SEDTAYTES HIANIONF OoO-2TB-T0L-T07T
8621 C0O°STZ LY 2070 00°G8L’9 00°000°%S SIDIAGTES YINNETI C00-TT18-T10L-TOT
0G0 00"000°z Q00 060" 0 00°000°2 SEOIANES THIDVEINOD 000-208-T0L-T0T
58781 G567 186 0070 SFT0ET 007269 ALT¥NOES TYID0S 000-STL-TOL-TOT
L8781 00" 0EE‘L a0 00°S0L"T 00°SE0’8 SEIWTTYS 000-20L-T0L-T0OT
ININNVTId - 104 3dag
000 06 0 000 000 060 SINVD - £L9 3d8Q TRIOL
000 0070 000 0070 000 SHADTAYAS GELOVIINGD 000-208-L49-10T
SINYYD - £L9 2dsa
00°00T 000 00°005°¢ 00°006°¢g Q07005 °¢E SEIIANAS ALINOWWOD - 099 3d=q fedoel
0070071 0gTo 00 005°¢E 00°005°¢E 00" 006 ADNYISISSY HINOX 000-¥¥8-093-T0T
SEOIANES ALINOWHOD - 09% 3dag
157 8F ST €65°%8 Gz IL6 BV SB90L6L 00°00E°%9T SYH¥OM 217d0d - Tk 3deq TEIOL
00" 0 G0 005 LE 0070 0ot o 00" 00G°LE I0I00Nd ~Qy¥ ATIOH "N 000-066-T6F-T0T
0009 ovrezL’ve 00 86£ LY 09 LLD'ZS 00°008798 FATYOTHD- " INIYH JY0d 000-828-TFF-T10T
9808 0O PELF 0070 cors1z0z 00°000°5¢ TIAYED a¥Od 000-SZ8-T¥P-10T
0o o 0070 000 oo (]l TONINGD FLIRDTIHA 000-F28-1PF-TOT
£576¢ GL°9%0’9 GZ E£56°L GZ'ES6°¢E 007000701 SAYQ AONYEID 000-228-TPF-TOT
0z 69 0O 0FS’T oerozs‘z 00°09% L 00°000 ‘s XEILIRID 0o0-T28-Trr-T01
SYMOM 2ITE0nd -~ TRP 3834
00°0 0070 0070 00°0 000 ALEIVS DITEAL - 9£E 3daqg Te3ol
0070 oo o Qoo 0070 00" 0 NOIIQAIELNOD WIDONR 000-656-9€£€-T0T
ALEIYS 2I7€nd - 9€c 3deq
80°€ 0B 6TF’6Z0'F 89°GCLB LS T8°096°L2T 19 °C6ELCT'F SEDIAYTS TYIENED - zrz 3deg T®iol
sainitpusdxyg
aNnd TYEANED - 10T pung
aasn {TYHEONEY) TYRE0N (ASYTHOIA) ISYRIDMI (| TYHSONEY) LI9DC0E QIONTRYT NCILTYOSHA WEEHON TS
1ead % ADNETHE $Z02/TE/0T HINOW SZ08/1e/0T 8g-5202
ATIEIIVAY ¥0d ALIAILDY ADNYTYE LA
SZOZ/TE/0T ONICONE QOoIdEd drysumol ATTCH :€d
NIWYE I9SN
AVA :1abeg ATHSMMOL ZTT0H ¥0J Id0dFd HEALICGNHEAXT CNY FONIAEd WY LT:60 GZ0Z/¥v1/1%



I9 166 'GLT T 89 88G‘RPEV T FONYIYE aNQE dNY

(€667, °8LT) {(£5°6%L 8LT) SZ~%202 - STEOLIGNHAXT/SINNIATT IO 1IN
3885 '¥6F T GS B8S'FEY T IONYTIYE aNnd "oug
00 00T TS L88B76ET (gg-zaL’sg) (18- LBB'6ET} ©p0To STIQLIANIAXE ¥ SEANIATI IO LEN
806 TS SLO'EE8 ‘Y 82" %05 E€6T 67 8IL I8 00 B6L'VO0E’S STINLIANTAXA TYIOL
A Z0TE96 296 'Y EFP"TZLLET 86 0£8‘TFE 00°'pPEL'P0E’S SIONIATE TYIOL
TONQE IVHMENTD - T0T pung
8076 TS GL0EE8’F B8Z Y05 E6T 67 8TL I8F 00 P6L'¥0E’S STNEIANSAXT TYIOL
06" LT €T°228°T 00" 0 L8 ZZE 00 sv8a’T STIVEAAY 0 QHVY0E 9NINCZ - p0L 3dag Tejog
0070 007006 0o0°0 060 6000% : LNIWESHNTRNTITY FOVATIH 000-088-F0L~TOT
LS B0 €T LLT coC L8 2ZE 00" 00§ NOILINL % S€AS ‘SHAa D00-0£8-F0L-TOT
Q00 Qor oot so"o Q00 0CTooE SEOIAMES QELDYHINGD 000-206-%0L~TOT
000 00 0% 0070 0070 00" 0% RITHODES TYINCS 000-STL-¥0L-T0T
0e-o 00" G0s 00" 0 00°0 00°s0s SHTIYTYS 000~-Z0L-F0L-TOT
STYISdY 40 d¥Y0d ONINOZ - oL adag
6 o 0070699 go'o 000 00°059°9 INIRIOTIARO AIINOKWOD - £0L 3dag Teaol
000 000598 go° o 0o o 00°069"9 SEd0 - INIWAQTIATI ALINNWWOD 000-966—-C0L—-TOT
INFWNACTIARA ALINAWHOD - £0. 3dag
gaInaTpuadyy
aQH0d TYEENED - I0T Pund
azsn ("TEREONTY) TYREON (ISYTIDHAC) IASYAYONI  (TYINHSONTY) TYIRION LESUNE QEANTERY NOIZATHDSHT HIGHON O
1908 % TONYIVE SZ0Z/TE/0T HINOW SE0T/TE/OT 9z~5Z02
FTTCTIVAY ¥0d ALIATIOVY HONYIVE dIA

$Z0Z/1£/0T SNIAQNT QOI¥xd drysusog ATTOH :g(g
NIY¥M -I98n

2T/¢ :abeg dIHSNMOL ATICH ¥0d IU0dFY MENIICNIIXE ONY FONTATT

WY LT:60 S20Z/FI/TT



(16°Z09°CHT) 68 ZI6'ZEY AINYTIYE ANAI dNE

98" BBT LT 99" BEZ ‘LT SZ~PZ0Z - SEYNIIANIANI/SHANAATY J0 LN

6 216 '2EY 697216 2EY IONYIVE dNNd C9dFd

00 00T 90 FIB ‘166G {16 10T) (90" F187T65) 00" 0 SHMNIIANAAXT % SHANIATY A0 IIN

€L LY £1°2Z0°8%9 TP 50T LB EZB'T6S 00 9%¥8’6ET’T STANLIANIARE TYLIOL

00" 0 ST 908 6ET T 057 ¢ 18°6 00°9¥876£2°T SEANIATS TYLOL

IINIWSSASSY TYIDALS AOSNUSHEWA ONY J9Td - 90Z pund

L7 LY €1 2Z0°8¥F9 16 90T LBTEZ8° 165G 0098 6ET'T SHEALIANIIKT TUIOL

L LF ET"ZZ0'BF9 15 50T LB EEZBT6G 00°9%8 68271 AONIDEHEWE ONY S¥I3 - 8€f 3deg B30

a6 0 00 TLTBOT 00" 0 000 GO TLT 80T AINTIYE ANOI OL BHISNTHEL 06E-SE6-BEE-50E

0070 sTill} go"o 6o 0 00" 0 aRNd TYIINED O HHJISNVHEL 101-666-8£E-50€

000 00670 000 6o 0 00" 0 AYTINO0 TYLIAYD 000~TL6-8EE-90T

ZE" TS 00 0LO'BES 000 0076057166 00°SLE°0ET°T SEDTANES AEIOVILNOD 000-208-8£E-90€

6682 E£T°T8L TF BOT LB BTIE 00 00T T SASNIIKE ONIIVHEL0 000-0FL-8£€-902

AONIOHINT ANY TJId - gee 1dag

saIn3Truadxa

0070 6T 9£8°6E2°T 0s°z 18°6 00°9%¥8°6EZ T SHEONIATI TYIOL

0oTo 000 00°0 0o 0 000 AONEOMUWI NV F¥Id - 8¢ 1dsg TeE3OL

600 0070 000 000 00°0 SONAd HIHLIO RO¥NE SHEISNYYL 000-669-8E£E~90C

AONEOYHNA ONY d3Id4 - ggg adag

000 61 9€E876ET"T 06°2 18°6 00 9¥B'BEZ'T TYHANES - 000 adog TRIOL

000 00" 0 00" 0 ago 000 FONYTIYE QNAI KOS Y=ISHYHL 06£-669-000-902

0070 000 000 000 00" 0 ANnE TEIENTD WO¥Yd YEISNYEL TOT-669-000-90¢2

000 000 0o 0 a0 0 060 SNOANYTIAOSIN 000-8L%-000-90C

1876 61706 05z 186 06 00T LSTIIINI 000-595-000-590¢

000 007 9%L‘6ETT 000 (oT¢ I 00°9FL'6EZ'T NOIIOETTOD INAWSSESSY TYIDHAS 000-TSF-000-202

THHENED - 000 1deg

S3aNUWIADY

INANSSISSY TYIDILS AONIOWAWI ONY THId - 902 pPung

a=Esn { TYREONTY) TYRE0N (ISYTIOEA) FSYAUONI  (TYWIONTY) TVIRION II900E QIANIRY NOILETYDSEd WALHON 1D
Isag % AONYTYE SE0Z/1E/OT HINOK GZ0Z/TE/01 9T-5202

TIIETIVAY HOJd ALIAILOY FONYIYE QLX

z1/9 rabeg

SZOZ/T1E/0T ONIONE dOIWdd

JIHSNMCL ATIOH ¥Cd LHOdEY TEALIONEIXH dNY ANNIATT

drysumol ATTOH :d9d
NIYYY 3980
W L1600 SZ0E/¥T/TT



SZ'608'E0T 90°655°86 FIINWIYE QNRE gNF
g8°¥ST’S 88 %51’ S¢~¥Z0Z - STANITANAAXT/SEANFAMS A0 IIN
90°655'86 90°655°86 FONYIVE QN Co3d
00°00T {TE"S6) 15°98E TE° 56 0o o STENITIANIAXA 3 SIONTAAY A0 IEN
LTI T TE"9TZ’'6TT 00°0 69 °GTY'T 00TEES 02T SHEOLIARIIXE TYIOL
GZ 1 00°T2I’61IT TS 98¢ 00°TIS’T 0C2ZEe9’ 02T SHANNIATE TYIOL
'SANNA 934 ~ £T7 pung
LT T TE9TZ'6TT GC" 0 69°5T%’T 007 2£9°02% STEALIANTAXE TYIOL
LT T 1£°9TZ°61T 0070 69 STF'T 00°289°021 9%da ~ g1z 3dag Te3ol
000 000 0070 0o 0 00°0 HONYTYE QNOE O SEISNVML 05E-566-£T2-E1Z
LT TE"9TE'6TT 000 69°GTF'T 00°z£9 02T SESNEIKE SNIIVITA0 000-0FL-£TZ-£1Z
29d - g1z 3Idag
saanaTpusdxy
5Z°1 80" TIET’61T TS 98¢ 007118’ 007289021 SEAONIATY TYIOL
SE°T 00" T2T’6TT TS5 98€E 00°TTI8°T 00°2ES ‘02T TEdaRED - oo adeg Teaol
000 00227801 00°0 oo o 00°ZEZ'ROT AONYTIYE QNOI WOWd ¥IISNYIL 06E-669-000-ETZ
6L b2 EL"ZIS'Y BL"E9¢E LT LBR'T poreco’s LSTEIINT 000-599—000~E17
LE"O LT°9LE’9 £L7ET ELTEZ 00" 0ov ‘9 SQRnd 994 000-8LF-000-5TT
TVHENTD - 000 adag
SINUIADY
SANNA 93d - £1Z pund
aasn (TYRIONEY} TENEON {ISYTUOEG) FSYTIONI  (IVHHEONDY) TYHHEON 239009 QIANTNY NOTIL3TH¥ISEA HAFHON 1D
I2dd % FONYTIYE SZ0Z/TE/0T HINORW SZQE/TE/0T 92-5202
FIGYTIVAY ¥0d ALIAILOW HONWINE QLX
SZ0Z/TE/0T ONIANY QOT¥Id drysumor A1T0H :ag
NI¥YY :I@sQ
Z1/L :eobeg dIHSHMMOL ATIOH ¥0d I¥0dd¥ THALIONIIXT aNY FIONIATE

Wd LT:60 SCOT/VI/TT



LLTZBLIOTT ZSEFELE AONYTYE QMO aNE

6L F0F LT GL BFOF LT SZ-¥207 - STENLIGNIAINT/SANNIATY A0 LAN

ESTEFBILE 25 ERB7LE ADNYTYE aNna - 9HFEE

00" 00T (9% %E5'T) 76" ¥og Sy hES T 0070 STENIIANIIXT ¥ SAONIATE 0 LEN

000 00°TE0ZeT 00°0 00" 0 00°1E0°22T STINLIUNEGHE TYLOL

9z°1 FG 96F'0CT 76 ve¢g 9% "VES’T 007 TIE0722T STANIATY TYLOL

ISaNOd DY QUIER - PIZ pund

0070 00 TE0ZTT 000 o0 00" 1E0°22T STINLIANZIXE TYIOL

0090 00 TEDTLT 000 00" 0 00°TEC‘ZZT ID¥ OY9IEW ~ pTg 3dag Telol

00" 0 00°0 0070 000 0070 ADNYTYE aNOd O HHISNYIL 06E-C6E6-FTZ-FTZ

00°0 00 TE0‘ZTT 0o Q 0o0°0 00°TE0'E2T SISNIAXT ONILTIIAC Q00-0%L-FT2-F1C

IOY QuIdW - $12 3d3q

sazngjrpuadxs

9z 1 PST96% 02T 26 k8e 9F PES‘T 00TEC“ZZI SAONIATI TYIOL

9z T ¥5 86F ‘0ZT Z6 F8E 9F"FES’T 00°1£0'zZT TYYANED - 000 3d3g Telol

0070 00 TES"6CT 0070 0070 00" T€9 60T FONYIEE QNAS HOME HHIASNTAL 06E-669-000-F12

LB VE F5°698°% 26 F8E 9F"FEST 00°00F ‘P LSTIIINT 000-999-000-F1¢

000 g0° 000’8 000 0070 00°000°8 SINEHAYd IDY¥ C9IAW 000-ZL5-000-F1T

TYIEANES - 000 adeg

SSNUTAIY

SONNI IDY¥ O¥IZW - FIZ Pung

assn (TYIIONEY) TYWEON (ASYTIDEC) FSYIMONI  [TUNHEONEY) TYRION 132008 QIANTNY NOIIATHDSEA WMAIHAN 1D
I90E % FONYTYLE SZOZ/TE/0T HINOW SZOT/IE/0T 9Z~S202T

ATECTIVAY ¥Od ALIAILOV ADNTTYS qLA

z1/8

:abeg

GZOZ/TE/O0T SNIANE dOIgdd

dIHSNMOL XTTOH ¥0d I¥OdTY MIOLIANIAXH CGNY IONIATL

drysumoy ATTOH :4d
NI¥YY 325
W LT:60 G202/FT/TT



5969586 LI"8GG'LET AINYTYS aNAI ANT
(19-0g2"92) (T9-pegg 9T} SZ-FZ0¢ - STEALIANHAXH/SANNIATI IO IIN
LT 855 LET LT 8EG LET TONYTYY aNnd Co%g
0070071 T6°LSLTT {(PL"2Z19'¥%) (16" L5L'ZT) 00°0 STYALIANZEEXE ¥ SHANIATI IO 1EN
T1-8% 9G"LEBEL 0E°SFPF LT ¥¥-8EY 89 0099221 STINLIAKHAXE TYLOL
¥1°6E LP-585728 95 zee‘zT £5°089 'G5 0079922k T SHNNIATY TYIOL
IONIQIING -~ 692 PUNg
1T 8¥ 9G°LZB'EL 0E"SPP LY ¥b8EY ‘89 00°992°ZF1 SHENLTIONIAXT TYIOL
I1°8F 9GS LZBEL DE SYPEFLT P BER 89 00992251 NOTILDB4SNI SNIQTInd - 1.t 3dag Te3cl
coo 000 [oToRdls] gore 00" 0 IONYTIYE ONAd 0L YHEISNVEL 06E-566~TLE-BFE
000 0" 0 000 0G0 000 SANOENYTIZEOSIN 000-656-TLE-BPT
£ETEE 00 PEB’EY 05 08% ‘S 00"ZEE ‘1L 00°99L°59 arad TYYENTO Ol #0d ¥OEYT] 000-Z¥6-TLE-6HE
EETEE o0-oce’eT 007008°T 000009 007000 ‘BT INARAYA ASYHET 000-T¥6-TLE-SVZ
00°0 0070 0070 00°0 000 INFHISHOGHITY HO9VATIN 000-098-TLE-GVE
00°0 00008 o' g 00°0 00" 006G NOITINL % SHENS 'S3ENg CO0-0ER-TLE~EHT
Z0°¥9 £0grgs1’e 0a-8sL’t 0z 1F8’E Q0°000°s YOLOHASKRI ANISHATA 000-808-TLE-6FT
09°25 ey ObL’Y 00°%T9 T 09°6GZ°S 007000701 HOLOFESNT TYIINYHOAR 000-L08-TLE-6%C
g0°239 08 EEQ’E 08°00£°T 0Z°'996'% 00"0o0’‘s HOLDIASHI TYOIHLIDYITE 000-908-TLE-GFE
PO WL 9T 16F ‘9 0Z LOT¥ 880G 8T 00°000°S2 HOLDUASNI ONIQTIRG 000-S08-1LE-6FT
£Z°88 0P 65071 Q0" FLOT 09°0¥6 'L 00°000°s SASNEIXHE ONIIWIIEC Q00-0FL-TLE~GDT
0070 000 00" 0 (sToRdls] 000 AONVENSNI HIIT/HITYRH 000-CZL-TLE~BVE
Qoo 000 00" 0 000 00°0 ALI¥O2ES TYIDOS 000-STL-TLE-6FZ
00" 0 00" 0 0070 Qo0 000 NOISNZEJ 000-0TL-TLE-BETD
Q00 0070 go°o 000 oero SATEVTYS 000-Z0L-TLE~6FZ
NOIISHEASNT DNIQIINE - TLe adag
saxnyTpuadxy
16 LE'g8c798 95°2£8°21 £5°08% ‘56 0079%Z°2ZF1 SAONTATE TYIOL
I 6E Ly 586798 9577ER’TT £5°0896S 00°9922rT TYIENES - 000 3d2g TR0l
000 00" LTS ‘0% 00°0 00790 00" LTS ‘0% IONYIYE ANOI HOYE HEISNTEL 06E-669-000-60Z
TE°8L ZLTLSE T8°LFE BZ 162°T 00"6¥9 ‘T LSEYIINT 000-S99-000~6F7
6€"FS SLT0T9'SK SL'PBS'ZT SZ2°6BE'FE 00°000°00T SLIMNMEd 3 SHESNIDIT 000-9LY-000-652
TYEENES - 000 3deg
sonuaaxyg
ONIQIING - 6%¢ pungd
agsn {TYREONTY) TYWECN (ISYTIDIA) FSUREONI  (TUHMONEY) TYNNON L9009 QIANTHY NOILETEDSET HITHON TD
19049 % - EONYTYE SZ0Z/TE/CT HINCH SZ0Z/1E/0T 92-520¢
TTTCTIYAY d40d ALIAILDY FONYIYE ali

CZ0Z/TE/0T SNICNE GOIvdd drysusog ATTOH :4Q
NIVYM :I8sn

Z1/6 rabeyg dTHSNMOL ATICH ¥M0d IMO4dEY FUNLIGNIIXTE OGNV FJONIASA

WY LT:60 SZ0Z/VPI/TIT



£L7650°E8T°T LI TE6 ‘6L FIONYTYE CNAJ dNF

0€°6%L 828 Q£ 65L7'82% GZ-PZ0Z7 - STINIIGNIAXI/SANNIATI I0 I8

LT TES'6BL LT TE6“6FL HONYIVE ONAS 939

00" 00T (8Z°6LE'F) Y6 0FZY 9z 6LE’Y 000 STANLTIGNAINT ¥ SANNTIATS J0 IEN

9z°0 00" 0£8°986°F 000 00" 0LT'ET 00°000°000°S STINIIANAEXE TYI0L

S0 PLOSYZBE P PET0FZ ¥ 9Z°6%5 LT 00°000‘CC0’S SHANTATE TYIOL

N0d INAWIAOYAWI TYIIAYD -~ I0F pung

9270 D0 0EB‘986°F 0o o 0O GLTET 00 000°000°S STINLTARAGKE TYLOL

8z°0 00 0E8‘9RE ‘T 000 0OC0LT’ET 00" 0C0‘000°S INFAFACYANI TYLXId¥D ~ Tos adsg Teaol

0070 06" 0 000 000 000 FONYIYd aNAZ OL HEISNTHL 06E~566-T06-T0F

Q0" 0 0o o 000 0070 0G0 ID300Yd qYELSHIVA 000-%L6-106-T0F

8Z°0 00" 0EB’9BE ¥ 0070 00" oLY ‘s 000007000 s SESNAGXKT % SADIANIAS TIVH JTHSHNMOL 000-€L6-106-T0F

Qg0 6o oo 0 00" 0 000 A¥ILA0 TYLIEYD 000-TL6-106-T0F

ap-o 0o 000 [o[olle! el SHOANYTIHAISIH 000-556~106-T0F

INZRAAOUARI TYLIIYD -~ Tos adag

0c- 0 00" 0 (o [oRs] 000 0070 TRYANTD - 000 3deg Telon

000 0070 0060 00°0 000 AVILO0 TYLIAYD 000-TL6-000-T0F

TYIANED ~ 000 3daqg

saanyTpusdxi

SETD PLTOSFZ86°F ¥6°0%Z°F 92 6¥G L1 00°000°000°S SEONEATE TYIOL

SL° 0 FLTOSEE86 R PE0FZ Y 9Z°605°LT 00°000°000°S TYYENIS ~ 000 3dsa Te3lOL

0o"o 00 LE67LPT T 000 000 00" L66°LYT T ADNYTEE ONAIT HOMI HEISNVLL 06E-669-000-T0F

Co 0 GO E00°ZGL’E coo Q070 GoTE00‘ZSL e SANAd JIELC WOHd SHIASNYIL 000~-669-000-10F

00°00T {SZ°6FS7LT) v6 0FZ ‘¥ 9Z 676 LT 000 LSTUELINY 000~5%9-000-T0F

TYEENTD -~ 000 3deg

I9NULASYH

ONQd LNIWIACHAWT TYLI4YD - I10F pung

adsn (TYWHONEY) TYREON (ISYTYDACQ) ASYMIONI {TYHEONTY) TYWHON 1A2G08 GIANTAY NOILATHDSHEA ¥IgHAN T2
9049 % AONYTYE GE20Z/TE/0T HINOW S20Z/TE/0T 9g~8202

ATEETIVAY ¥0d ALIAIIDV HONYTIYE QLK

CL/0T

rabeg

SZQZ/TE/0T ONIANA QOTIgdd

JIHSNMOL ATTOH ¥0d I¥0dEY H¥NLIONEIXE ANV HONTATY

drysumol ATTOH 94
NI¥YY 3980
WY (T°60 SZ0Z/PLI/TT



807250602 L9 T9%‘Ehe

FORVTIYE aNnd aNd

(2e"6L5'T) (ze 5L87T) §Z~¥Z07 - STMNIIONTIXT/SHONIARY J0 1IN
L9 19V ’EYE L9°T9Y‘EVE IONYIVE gNQ3 "oEd
007007 Lz oes’ze {6¥-101°'2) {tz-ogg’zed oo o SHMALIGNTEXE ¥ SEANEATY 40 LaAN
EL 62 88 E€TTTLT 0T"S1IS‘Z ZT T2 'TL Q0 SESERT STINLIANIEXT THIOL
SB°6T §1°¥66°%02 19°£1¥% S8 065 ‘BE 00°SPS’E¥Re SEONEATY TYIOL
IONAd INYYD TYLIdYD - £0F pung
£€°62 B8 ELTZLL 01681572 2L TZY'TIL 00 SFEERE STIATIIANTIGHE TYIOJ
£E"6E 8B EZT’ZLY 0T"S15°2 Z1°1eh ‘1L ([vR=3 T-Rb 44 AVILOO TYIIAYD - £06 3dsg Te3ol
VT 6L 00°9EL’E 00°0 007792791 007000781 NOIIVaNACE ALIKNRWOD 000-BL6-E06-E0b
ve"qz 88°/LBL 89T 01751672 TITLSTLS 005G '5ZE aNnd ISNYI FAYIW NITD - AYILAC TYII&YD 000-LLB~E06-EOF
0c o 000 00" 0 0o o 000 INYED LIOW SHETEYHD - AVILNC TYLIGYD 000~9L6-C06—£0F
AYIIOO TYLIAYD - £06 3dag
saxnaTpuadxy
S8°ST ST bGE'F0Z 19°¢Th 58°065’'8¢€ 00 SES'ERE SAANIATI TYIOL
58°GT ST PS6'¥0C T9 €Tk G8°06578¢ 00" SPG'ERE TYHANTS - 000 3deg Tel0l
00°0 00°5rs 7’522 oo 000 00°5¥5°52¢2 FONYTYE ONQJ WO¥3 $EIASNVEL 06E-669-000-E0F
BL79TT  (¥670Z0'E) 000 $6°020°12 00°000’8T NOIIYANNCE ALINOWHOD 000-5.9~000-£0F
000 00°0 00°0 coe 000 SONAZ ENYED 1SONI FOSRNETS THL 000-5L9-000-E0F
00' 00T  (ZE'EET’ST! 060 ZE'EET’ST G0°0 SONRE INVED LIOK SHTEVHD 000-5£L9-000~ECK
00°00T (66°9€EV'2) 9Tk ES"9EF‘Z 00°Q LSTIEINT 000-599-000-E0F
TYIENTD ~ 00 3dag
SonU2AE
aNQd INYES TYLIdYD ~ £0bF puni
assn (TUWNEONEY) TYRMON (ASETIDIC) (TYRNONGY) TYEON 132009 CEANTRY NOILATEDSIA UEEHON TO
19ag 3% TONYTIVE SZ0Z/TE/0T HINOK 5202/18/01 9g-6202
TTALTITAY ¥od ALIAIIOY AONYIYE dLA
$Z0Z/TE/0T SNIANE QOI¥ES drysusog, ATTOH ‘80
NIYYY 3Issn
2TI/1T :abeg dIHSNMOL XTIOH ¥0J I¥0dTd TUNLIUNEAXH JNY FANIATE

P& L1:60 SZ0T/BPT/TT



9T°266°CI0°E
SSTEELIITEE

SGUREL9TE’E
S GEL9TE'E

SANAA TIV - FONYIVE ONNJ ONE
SONna ITY - HONYIYY aNNd "93Ig

00°00T 26 0%B ‘894 {5F 986 ‘9E) {ge-0pg’gaL) 60" 0 STINLIANAIXT 7 SIANFATS A0 IAN

6" 6 6L ZEPEIT'IT 607 6957€1C T9°486°L22°1 0CT0EFIPE’ZT SANA TIV - STHALIANSIXE TYLOL

ZLE TEELZ'EZBRIT G9°285°9LT 69°8FI‘65F 00" 0ZF"THEET SANGE TIY - SEANZATY TYIOL

BE G9E 'TLT Z8°¥88719 IONYIVE aNnd gNF

GE TF0’LOT 8E TH0‘L0T §Z-¥707 - SMINITANZAXI/SENNIATY J0 IAN

28 F88°1Y ze §88°19 AONYTYE aNOd C9dd

00°00T  (08°6£F°2) 8T°009 086V ’Z 600 STANLICNTINE 3 SENNIATY J0 IAN

00" 0 00 90E°89T 000 0070 00°90£°8971 SHHNLIANSAXE TYLOL

S 1 02°998°69T 817009 08 BER T 00°50£7891 SHANIATE TYIOL

TSIRIAWIAQEANI a¥0od - KOV pung

00°0 00" 90E‘89T 0ota 00" 0 0079087831 STALIANEAXE TYI0OL

000 00°90£°89T 0070 000 00°30€7891 ONOd INTIRIACHEWI O¥0d - b0 2dag Teacl

0o"o 00908891 0070 000 0079087891 IRQd LOEC0¥d TYILIAYD OF HISNYEL 107-566-70F~%0F

00°0 ac- o po-g 000 go-o IONYTYE QNI O YHISNWEL D6E-S66-F0F-F0F

aNOd INEWIACHIWI g¥od - y0% 3dag

S2INITPUadxg

(oL A 0Z°998°69T 8T 009 0B BER’Z 00'30£789T SANNEATY TYIOL

SETT 0Z°998°69T BT 009 08°BER‘Z 00°90£789T TYMINTS - 000 3ded re3el

ao- 0 00-80g’891 00°0 00" 0 00°90£7891 ADNYTYI ANAJ HOWd YEISNTEL 06E-669-000-%0F

00" o 00°0 8070 06 0 0070 aNOT TVEINED HOMd ¥IISNYEL T0T-669-000~-50F

00°00T l08 6EF‘Z) 817009 0B'6EF°Z o 0 LSTEALNT 060-599-000-%0F

TYUENGED - 000 3dag

Sonuzay

SINTHIACHSHI JUYCY - ¥0% pund

aIsn {TYIMEONEY) TYRMON (ISYTADEA) HASYHUINI (TYWEONTY) TYWNON IIAD200NE GIANINY NOILGTHISEA HHHWAN TD
19049 3% HONYTIYE SZ0Z/TE/0T HINOKW SZTOT/TE/OT 9g-5Z0%

TIEVIIYAY 03 ALIAILOY

Z1/21 :e@beg

IONVIVE JIR
SE0Z/TE/OQT ONIANT QOIddd
dTHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0d 1¥0dEY MUNLIONEAXT ONY IOANFATY

drysumo] ATTOH 1490
NI¥¥E :x9¢n
WT L1°60C SZOZ/FL/IT



11/14/2025

GL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR HOLLY TOWNSHIP
POST DATES 10/16/2025 - 11/18/2025
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

invoice Line Desc

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

Dept 215 CLERK
101-215-830-000

DUES, SUBS & TIHTION

Dept 216 CLERK ADMINISTRATION

101-216-830-000

Dept 253 TREASURER

101-253-830-000
101-253-830-000

DUES, SUBS & TUITION

DUES, SUBS & TUITION
DUES, SUBS & TUITION

Dept 255 TREASURER ADMINISTRATION

101-255-830-000
101-255-830-000

Dept 262 ELECTIONS

101-262-740-000

DUES, SUBS & TUITION
DUES, SUBS & TUITION

OPERATING EXPENSES

Dept 265 TOWNSHIP PROPERTIES

101-265-850-000
101-265-220-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-820-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-830-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

UTILITIES

UTILITIES

UTILITIES

UTILITIES

UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANGE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

JAN 2026-JAN 2027 CLERK MEMBERSHIP

JAN 26-JAN 27 DEP CLERK MEMBERSHIP

9/30/25-9/30/26 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL-TREASUREF
OCTA MEMBERSHIP FEES & HOLIDAY LUNCHEON

9/30/25-9/30/26 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL-DEP TREAS!
OCTA MEMBERSHIP FEES & HOLIDAY LUNCHEON

LICENSE & SUPPORT RENEWAL FOR 2026 TABULATOF

0CT25

OCT 25-120 5. SAGINAW ST
OCT 25-4092 GRANGE HALLRD
OCT 25-13408 N. HOLLY RD
OCT 25-13465 N. HOLLY RD
OCT 25-102 CIVIC DR

OCT 25-4092 GRANGE HALL RD
SEP 25-OFFICE CLEANING

SEP 25 FARMSTEAD LAWN

OCT 25-RUGS

OCT 25

TOWNSHIP HALL BOILER
TOWNSHIP HALL BOILER

Amount

2,500.00

2,500.00

606.48
388.65
161.26
11.18
8.25
59.72
37.05
500.00
1,500.00
191.12
357.21
331.20
1,0567.10



101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-830-000
101-265-930-000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

Dept 267 ARPA OPERATING EXPENSES

101-267-740-000

ARPA OPERATING EXPENSES

Dept 272 GENERAL SERVICES

101-272-740-000

OPERATING EXPENSES

101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-740-000 OPERATING EXPENSES
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-804-000 ATTORNEY
101-272-816-000 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE
101-272-816-000 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE
101-272-816-000 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE
Dept 441 PUBLIC WORKS

101-441-821-000 CEMETERY

TOWNSHIP HALL BOILER
OCT 25-0OFFICE CLEANING
RUGS AND SUPPLIES
FENCE POST

OCT 25 MOWING

TITLE SEARCH-CUTCHEY

0CT 25

8/28/25-11/25-25-POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE
POSTAGE MACHINE RENTAL-AUG-NOV 2025
OCTY 25-SUPPLIES

OCT 25-WATER

NOV 25-WATER COOLER RENTAL

SEP 25-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-HOLLY TWP
SEP 25-RON DENNIS

SEP 25-GILLESPIE

SEP 25-ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT

SEP 25-SOUTH FLINT GRAVEL

HOLLY TOWNSHIP

SOUTH FLINT GRAVEL-CONGENT JUDGEMENT
STONY RUN-TAX TRIBUNAL

STONY RUN-TAX TRIBUNAL

RON DENNIS

GILLESPIE

ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT

ATH QUARTER IT SERVICE

OCT 25

CLOUD UPGRADE IMPLEMENTATION DEPOSIT

SEP 25- CEMETERY MOWING

Fund 206 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
Dept 338 FIRE AND EMERGENCY

206-338-740-000

OPERATING EXPENSES

OCT 25-2413 BELFORD RD

385.10
500.00
238.77

6,353.58

14,316.50

14,316.50

300.00
3,085.85
66.45
66.45
334,88
21.95
14.00
1,494.65
544.50
2,260.50
165.00
33.00
2,100.00
198.00
33.00
287.00
132.00
3,976.50
180.00
2,875.50
1,360.86
20,050.00

63,830.21

28.07



206-338-740-000
206-338-740-000

Fund 249 BUILDING

OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES

Dept 371 BUILDING INSPECTION

248-371-740-000
249-371-740-000
249-371-740-000
249-371-740-000
248-371-740-000
249-371-805-000
248-371-805-000
249-371-806-000
248-371-806-000
249-371-807-000
249-371-807-000
249-371-808-000
249-371-808-000

OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
BUILDING INSPECTOR
BUILDING INSPECTOR
ELECTRICALINSPECTOR
ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
MECHANICAL INSPECTOR
MECHANICAL INSPECTOR
PLUMBING INSPECTOR
PLUMBING INSPECTOR

Fund 401 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Dept 901 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

401-801-973-000

OCT 25-4485 NELSON SCOTT DR
0CT25-13323 FISH LAKE RD

BUILDING DEPT FILE MAINTENANCE
10/21/25-10/23/25

10/27/25 - 10/30/25

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FILE MAINTENANCE
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FILE MAINTENANCE
10/01/25 - 10/15/25

10/16/25 - 10/31/25

10/01/25 - 10/15/25

10/16/25 - 10/31/25

10/01/25 - 10/15/25

10/16/25 - 10/31/25

10/01/25 - 10/15/25

10/16/25 - 10/31/25

TOWNSHIP HALL SERVICES & TOWNSHIP HALL-SITE PLAN

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

Fund 206 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SPECIAL ASSESSMEI

Fund 249 BUIL.DING
Fund 401 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Total For All Funds:

279.00
378.00
450.00
333.00
297.00
2,726.49
1,253.95
829.80
616.20
883.80
318.60
935.40

9,555,04

9,555.04

4,622,42

4,622.42

4,622.42

63,830.21
101.83
9,555.04
4,622.42

78,109.50






NORTH OAKLAND COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY
Board of Directors Meeting
Octoher 28, 2025
MINUTES

Location: Rose Township Offices, 9080 Mason St, Holly, M1 48442
CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Kullis calted the meeting to order at 6:31 pm.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Kullis, Winchester, Stilwell, Miller, Johnson
MEMBERS ABSENT: None

AGENDA APPROVAL

Motion by Winchester to approve the agenda as presen.tg;'i.'Suppb}_t__ed by Johnson. A voice vote was

taken. All present voted yes. The motion was carri,_e_dus'lﬂ,

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL

Motion by Winchester to approve the Consent Agenda as presented Supported by Milter Aroll call vote

was taken. All present voted yes. The motion was carr[ed 5/0

PUBLIC COMIVIENT — ON AGENDA ITEMS ONLY -~ No pubflc comment

PRESENTATIONS — None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. Fire and Emergency Services Consolidation

All present unanimously agreed that this issue Wa_s_ more appropriately handled by the local governments.
No action taken.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Consider Closed Session to Discuss Strategy and Negotiation in Connection with the NOCFA colfective
Bargaining Agreement in Accordance with MCL 15.268(1}{c)

Motion by Winchester to enter into closed session to discuss strategy and negotiation in
connection with the NOCFA collective bargaining agreement In accordance with MCL
15.268(1){c) at 6:43 pm. Supported by Johnson. A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes.

The motion was carried 5/0.

Motion by Winchester to come out of closed session to discuss strategy and negotiation in
connection with the NOCFA collective bargaining agreement in accordance with MCL
15.268(I){c) at 6:43 pm. Supported by Miller. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The

motion was carried 5/0.

Motion by Winchester to amend the agenda to move the closed session, New Business Item #1,
to the end of the meeting. Supported by Kullis. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes.

The motion was carried 5/0.

NOCFA Board Meeting 9/23/2025 i _Pagelof3




REPORTS

{1 Chief’s Report — Matt Weil

e The board agreed that they would like a report format that details the purpose of each run

o 123 calls -11 in-district; 12 out-of-district; average run time is 7.5 minutes

e 1-75 project is winding down

¢ Uncovered shifts 2.58%; OT will exceed budgeted amount as anticipated

«  Mutual aid — 11% of calls (3 in Village of Holly, 5 in Groveland)

s Significant incident responses: Grand Blanc church shooter and fire {note: department does not
currently have ballistic protection); assistance and support provided to Springfield Twp. in accidental
death of one of their firefighters

* Training: Capt. Dunbar participated in dive team training/aircraft water rescue in St. ignace

+  Events:

o Capt. Finkbeiner did a presentation at Wilderness Rescue
o Open House was well attended — Hurley handed out 38 gun locks; Lions Club did 28 vision
screenings for children; bike give-away was a big hit
o Participated in Homecoming parade and trucks displayed at the game
[0 Firefighters Association — Lt, Blaska
* Doing lots of outreach, including Village of Holly
o Truck & Treat at Mission Point was very successful
o Participated in post-secondary event at HHS — recruitment of future firefighters
s  Deputy Chief Smith reported that the department has applied for a grant to replace missing address
signs in both townships free of charge
[0 Holly Township
s Trilogy Health has begun moving earth at the Fish Lake Rd. site
[0 Rose Township :
*  Supervisor Stitlwell is participating in NOCFA union negotiations
¢ Tire collection is Saturday at noon; 5 trailer foads have been removed to date
[l Citizen at Large — Johnson
+ Attended the Open House; noted that people loved it and the opportunity to see the equipment
PUBLIC COMIMENT

Comment: omitting addresses from public comment is a trend in public meetings; expressed concern about OT
coverage — cost and effect on staffing.

NEW BUSINESS, item #1

Consider Closed Session to Discuss Strategy and Negotiation in Connection with the NOCFA collective
Bargaining Agreement in Accordance with MCL 15.268{1}{c)

Motion by Kullis to enter into closed session te discuss strategy and negotiation in connection with the
NOCFA collective bargaining agreement in accordance with MCL 15.268{1){c) at 7:23 pm. Supported by
Johnson. A roli call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion was carried 5/0.

Motion by Kullis to come out of closed session to discuss strategy and negotiation in connection with
the NOCFA collective bargaining agreement in accordance with MCL 15.268{l}{(c) at 9:17 pm. Supported
by Johnson. A voice vote was taken. AH present voted yes. The motion was carried 5/0.

No action taken.

MOCFA Board Meeting 9/23/2025 . ... Page20f3




ADJOURNMENT — Chairperson Kullis adjourned the meeting at 9:18 pm.

Submitted by: Diane Hill, Recording Secretary

NOCFA Board Meeting 9/23/2025 _ . Page30of3







Holly Township
Planning Commission — Regular Meeting
Minutes of October 8, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Commissioner Mitchell called the regular meeting of the Holly Township
Planning Commission to order at 6:30 p.m. located at the Holly Township Offices (Upstairs), 102
Civic Drive, Holly, Michigan 48442

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

Present

Glen Mitchell, Michael McCanney, Ben Armstead, Ray Kerton, Chuck Stoner, Leslie Jorgensen
and Derek Sommer.

Menmbers Absent

None,

Others Present

Paige Smith, Planner and Clerk Winchester.
AGENDA APPROVAL

> Motion by Commissioner Sommer to approve the agenda, Supported by
Commissioner Armstead. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion

carried 7/0.
PUBLIC COMMENT - For Items on the Agenda Only: No Public Comment.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Special Land Use Permit Amendment Application by the Michigan
Renaissance Festival to operate a Festival and other Events on parcel number 01-12-476-002 and
01-12-401-003 in an AGRE. Zoning District.

» Motion by Commissioner Mitchell to open the public Hearing, Supported by
Commissioner Stoner. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion
carried 7/0.



Heolly Township Planning Comimission — Regular Meeting Qctober 8, 2025 Page 2 of 3

Chip Schultz, Director explained that the amendment is needed due to the fact that the
Hollydazzle event hours are different than what was approved for the festival’s Special
Land Use Permit.

» Motion by Commissioner Sommer to close the public Hearing. Supported by
Commissioner Armstead. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion
carried 7/0.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - September 10, 2025

» Motion by Commissioner Sommer to approve August 13, 2025 minutes. Supported
by Commissioner Armstead. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The
motion carried 7/0.

COMMUNICATIONS: None.

OLD BUSINESS: None.

NEW BUSINESS

L.

Special Land Use Permit Amendment Application by the Michigan Renaissance Festival to
operate a Festival and other Events on parcel number 01-12-476-002 and 01-12-401-003 in
an AGRE. Zoning District.

» Commissioner McCanney moved to approve the request to amend the special land
use permit for the operation of the Michigan Renaissance Festival at 12600 Dixie
Highway, Holly, M1 48442 to allow for the Hollydazzle Light Show to operate from
5:00 pm to 10:00 pm on the dates noted in the Planner’s report dated September 30,
2025, and from 5:00 pm to 12:30 am the evening of December 31st, based on the
findings of fact that:

a) The operation of the site will be harmonious and in accordance with the general and
specific objectives of the Township master plan and will be compatible with the natural
environment based on the site design and operational regulations put in place by the
festival. '

b) The site is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious
and apprepriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general
vicinity and will not change the essential character of the area,

¢) The site and operation are not hazardous or disturbing to existing or future nearby
uses based on the landscape buffering and operational regulations such as parking
management put in place by the festival.

d) The site and operation are compatible with adjacent uses of land and will promote
the use of land in a socially and economically desirable manner, based on the landscape



Holly Township Planning Comrmission — Repular Meeting October 8, 2025 Page 3 0of 3

buffering and operational regulations such as parking management put in place by the
festival,

¢) The site and operation are served adequately by essential public services.
f) The site and operation will not create excessive additional public costs and wiil not
significantly decrease property values of surrounding properties, based on the

continuing investment into the site and its longstanding history in the Township.

g) The site and operation meets all the requirements and standards of the Holly
Township Zoning Ordinance and other applicable laws, standards, ordinances, and/or

regulations

Supported by Commissioner Stoner. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The
motion carried 7/0.

RIEPORTS: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT: None.

ADJOURNMENT
> Motion by Commissioner Sommer to adjourn the meeting. Supported by
Commissioner Armstead. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion

carried 7/0.

ADJOURNMENT - Commissioner Mitchell adjourned the meeting at 6:53 pm.

Karin S. Winchester, Clerk






Revenue Totals Report

11/14/2025

Record Type Exact Type Category Pescription Entries Amount
Permit Building Registration Fee Registration - Builder 15.00
Permit Building Residential Permit Base Fee - Residential 1 75.00
Permit Building Residential PLAN REVIEW 8 520.00
Permit Building Residential Res, Garage 2 135.15
Permit Building Residential Res, LEAN TO 1 60.0C
Permit Building Residential RES, POGLE BARN UP TO 3000 S¢ 1 180.00
Permit Building Residential Res, Porch/Dack/Balcony 1 45.00
Permit Building Residential Res, Remodel 3 388.00
Permit Building Residential Res, REROOF 1 1,171.90
Permit Building Residential Res, REROOF 1 260.00
Permit Building Residential Residental New SF 5 2,223.70
Permit Building Standard Ttem Base fee 14 1,0860.00
Permit Electrical Inspection Inspection, Additional 2 150.00
Permit Electrical Tnspection INSPECTION, SERVICE 3 225.00
Permit Electrical Inspection NEW SF DWELLING UP TO 200 AMPS 1 275,00
Permit Electrical License Fee Registration - Electrical 3 45.00
Permit Electrical Service Service, 15 thru 200 amps 1 35.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item A/C Unit 1 10,00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Circuit 2 105.00
Permit Electrical Standard ITtem Fixture/Device 2 20.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Motor, 1 - 20 KVA/HP 3 45.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item NEW SF DWELLING UP TO 150 AMPS 4 1,000.00
Perrait Electrical Standard Item PERMIT BASE FEE 6 450.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Power Outlet 1 30.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Trench 2 20.00
Permit Mechanical Cooling CENTRAL A/C UP TO 8 HP 1 45.00
Permit Mechanical Heating GAS OR SCLID FUEL MANUFACT FIREP 1 25.00
Permit Mechanical Inspection Inspection, Additiocnal 1 65.00
Permit Mechanical License Fee Registration - Mechanical 8 90.00
Permi t Mechanical Piping Piping, Gas, per Outlet 9 192.00
Permit Mechanical plan Review Mechanical, Plan Review 1 65.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item Exhaust Fans 1 24.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item FUEL BURNING EQUIPMENT 4 180.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item Permit Base Fee 14 1,050.00
Permi ¢ Mechanical Standard Item Res, New SF Dwelling 1 250.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item Water Connected Appliance 1 8.00
Permit Mechanical Tank TANK, AGROUND 1 75.00
Permit Plumbing Distribution WATER DISTRIBUTION PIPING, RES 5 50.00
Permit Plumbing Inspection Inspection, Additional 4 260.00
Permit Plumbing Sewer/Drain Sump Pump 6 50.00
Population: All Records

Transaction.DateToPostOn

Between
12:00:00 AM AND 10/31/2025 11:59:59 PM

10/1/2025



Permit Plumbing Standard Item Fizture 5 432.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Meter, Sprinkler q 40.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Meter, Water 4 40.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Permit Base Fee 12 900.00
Parmit Plumbing Standard Item Stack 4 128.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Water-Connected Appliance 2 12.00

Totals 160 12,584.75

Population: All Records

Transaction.DateToPostOn Between
12:00:00 AM AND 10/31/2025 11:59:59 PM

10/1/2025



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PY 2026 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT APPLICATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Holly Township Board of Trustees will hold a
public hearing on November 19, 2025 at 6:30 p.m., or shortly thercafter, at the Holly
Township Hall (Upstairs) 102 Civic Dr., Holly, MI 48442 for the purpose of hearing public
comments on the CDBG Program Year 2026 application to fund eligible projects.

Eligible Project List will be available for public viewing at the Clerk’s Office, 102 Civic
Dr., Holly MI 48442 or online at www.hollytownship.org/community/legal/publicnotices

The hearing is open to the public to voice their views or to submit written comment,
Citizens are encouraged to attend and participate in the hearing. The Holly Township Board
will consider any public comments received at this time. Written comments may be
submitted prior to the hearing by writing to: Clerk at 102 Civic Dr., Holly, Michigan 48442,

Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs will be made upon receiving seven
(7) day advance notice. Contact Holly Township Clerk at the number above for special

Services,

Karin §. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk






CDBG matrix codes are used to indicate-but do not establish-activity eligibility. An activi.ty mu_s? lbe
eligible in accordance with the regulations at 24 CFR 570.201- 570.207. If interested in ac‘ttwties
other than those listed below contact the Grant Compliance Coordinator at (248) 858-5312 to discuss

eligibility

DCQUISITIRNIAND RISHOSIEION

02  Disposition of Real Property

04  Clearance and Demolition

04A Cleanup of Contaminated Sites

08 Relocation

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS

0O3A Senior Center

03B Facilities for Persons with Disabilities

03C Homeless Facilities (not operating costs)

03D Youth Centers

O3E Neighborhood Facilities

Q3F Parks, Recreational Facilities

03G Parking Facilities

O3H Solid Waste Disposal Improvements

03l  Flood Drainage Improvements

03J Water/Sewer Improvements

03K Street Improvements

0O3L Sidewalks

O3M Child Care Centers

03N Tree Planting

030 Fire Stations/Equipment

O3P Health Facilities

03Q Facilities for Abused and Neglected Children
O3R Asbestos Removal

03S Facilities for AIDS Patients (not operating costs)
03Z Other Public Improvements Not Listed in 03A-03T
06  Interim Assistance

11 Privately Owned Utilities

16B Non-Residential Historic Preservation

23  Tornado Shelters Serving Private Mobile Home Parks
PUBLIC SERVICES

037 Homeless/AIDS Patients Programs

OBA Senior Services

05B Services for Persons with Disabilities

O8C Legal Services

05D Youth Services

OBE Transportation Services

O5F Substance Abuse Services

05G  Services for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking
085H Employment Training

05l  Crime Awareness/Prevention

05J Fair Housing Activities (subject to Public Services cap)
05K Tenant/Landlord Counseling

O5L Child Care Services



PUBLIC SERVICES CONTINUED

05M Health Services

05N  Services for Abused and Neglected Children

05C Mental Health Services

05P  Screening for Lead Poisoning

05Q Subsistence Payments

05R Homebuyer Downpayment Assistance - Excluding Housing Counseling under 24 CFR 5.100
055 Rental Housing Subsidies

05T  Security Deposits

05U  Housing Counseling only, under 24 CFR 5.100

05V Neighborhood Cleanups

05W Food Banks

05X Housing Information and Referral Services

05Y  Housing Counseling under 24 CFR 5,100 Supporting Homebuyer Downpayment Assist (05R)
05Z  Other Public Services Not Listed in 03T and 05A-05Y (Housekeeping/Safety & Repair/Yard)
HOUSING

09 Loss of Rental Income

12 Construction of Housing

13A  Housing Counseling, under 24 CFR 5.100, for Homeownership Assistance (13B)

13B  Homeownership Assistance — excluding Housing Counseling under 24 CFR 5,100

14A  Rehabilitation: Single-Unit Residential

14B  Rehabilitation: Multi-Unit Residential

14C  Rehabilitation: Public Housing Modernization

14D Rehabilitation: Other Publicly Owned Residential Buildings

t4F  Rehabilitation: Energy Efficiency Improvements

14G  Rehabilitation; Acquisition

14H Rehabilitation: Administration

14l  Lead-Based Paint/l.ead Hazards Testing/Abatement

14J  Housing Services, Excluding Housing Counseling, under 24 CFR 5.100

14K Housing Counseling, under 24 CFR 5,100 Supporting HOME Program Housing Activities
14L Housing Counseling, under 24 CFR 5.100, in Conjunction with CDBG Assisted Housing Rehab
15 Code Enforcement

16A  Residential Historic Preservation

18E  Operation and Repair of Foreclosed Property (“In-Rem Housing")

ECONOMIC DEVEIL.OPMENT

14E  Rehabilitation; Publicly or Privately Owned Commercial/lndustrial

17A  Commercialfindustrial: Acquisition/Disposition

178  Commercialfindustrial: Infrastructure Development

17C  Commercialfindustrial: Building Acquisition, Construction, Rehabilitation

17D Commercialfindustrial: Other Improvements

18A  Economic Development: Direct Financial Assistance to For-Profit Business

18B Economic Development: Technical Assistance

18C Economic Development: Microenterprise Assistance

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

21A  General Program Administration

21D Fair Housing Activities (subject to Admin cap)

21H CDBG Funding of HOME Admin

211 CDBG Funding of HOME CHDO Operating Expenses
OTHER

19C CDBG Non-Profit Capacity Building



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN Oje

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEME \
(with required and other supplementary 1@ ation)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Maner

Costerisan




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT oot emmitissnssssssssssssssssssissssssssssssss st s sesssssssssss st st ssssssssasssssssassssssns 1-3
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ..o, R T 4-7
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...uvurusieuummeresssssissssimsnesssssesssssasssssassssassssss st st asssssshsss 0410018008018 sssssn s s sssss 8
Government-wide Financial Statements
StatemMeENE Of Nt POSIEION . cuiiieieresess st ssssssssssssssassssss s R s b0 9
SEATEMENE OF ACHIVITIES it d LSRR SRR PR SRR R RS s bR 00 10
Fund Financial Statements K
Governmental Funds < AN
BalanCe SHEeL.....merersrssssssssssssssssssssssssssisisissssssssssssss s &\ T— 11
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statem?nt Net Position ... wid 2
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, s.7eul.... w13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chai&e in
Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement ofégtlgnhes ................................................. 14
Fiduciary Funds ¢ 4
Statement of Fiduciary Net POSition i P T 15
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position...... g\( 3 ........................ 16
Notes to Financial SEatemients. .. w,”/\"\ .................................... 17-34
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION........ ,is‘{ },) ................................................... 35
\g.y
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General. Fﬁg R ST 36
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire and g)nmgency Fund ................. 37
Schedule of Changes in the Township’ fNe): EB Llablhty (Asset) and Related Ratios ... 38
Schedule of Township Contributions V,,O'P'EB i e i 39
Schedule of Investment Returng/ fQPEB ............................... w40
7N
2\
Note to Required Supplemé‘{spaky Information.. |
OTHER SUPPLEMENTA\\}fNFORMATION .............................................................................................................................. 42
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet......cum, w43
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 7



2425 E. Grand River Ave.,
Suite 1, Lansing, MI 48912

#~Maner S
C

osterisan 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Township Board of the
Township of Holly
Oakland County, Michigan

£
AN
O

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements %
Opinions @q&
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the gove ntal activities, each major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Hollof and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which co]lectiv‘e&\ sfiprise the Township of Holly’s basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents. &

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to I:Qf) present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, e jor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Township of Holly, as of June 30, 2025, Ee respective changes in financial position for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting princizij nerally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinions ij

P
We conducted our audit in ac fgapce with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilitie u%e er those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial § t%knts section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Township
of Holly and to meet o __ ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Township of Holly’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

. . . . . . W, ey
¥ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial sgagen nts, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to thc?e\“r;bs . Such procedures include
s

> Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughgut the audit,

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and di cl\ sWes in the financial statements.

»> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aigdit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the, 1pose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Township of Holly's internal controéa%c' rdingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. . . y - . - . .
»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policieg uséd, and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evalyﬁa’teeghe overall presentation of the financial statements.

&

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there€ g;'conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Toﬂw}nsp i of Holly’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time. )

ND

We are required to communicate with tiose charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the aqditésiéhiﬁcant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters

that we identified during the aud}t:’f\
n;\ V4 g

Required Supplementary In}?‘ifiation

Accounting principles génerally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion

and analysis and othergfsgired supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to

supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Township of Holly’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information, as listed in the
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

November 7, 2025 (\X\.



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Holly's (the Township) financial performance provides an overview
of the Township's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Please read it in conjunction with the
Township’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

As discussed in further detail in this discussion and analysis, the following represents the most significant financial
highlight for the year ended June 30, 2025:

» Property tax revenues are the Township’s largest revenue source. Property tax revenue, at the
governmental fund level, for the year ended June 30, 2025, was approximately $1,809,000. The
Township’s millage rate of 1.00 and 4.00 for operating and fire and emergency services, respectively,
stayed the same, & \

N

Using this Annual Report \i( )"

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statemen{‘éf--ﬁét position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the Township as a whalg and present a longer-term view of
the Township's finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis ofafcounting so that it can measure the cost
of providing services during the current year, and whether the taxﬁa‘{;r{{ have funded the full cost of providing
government services. The Fund financial statements present afho._ t-term view; they tell us how the taxpayers’
resources were spent during the year, as well as how mugl{ i alailable for future spending. Fund financial
statements also report the Township's operations in morg{detéﬂ than the government-wide financial statements
by providing information about the Township's most sign‘fﬁl:ant funds.
s \)

Governmental Activities </
N\

F o™ )
The following tables show, in a condensed fqz‘r()fat, the current year’s net position and changes in net position
compared to the prior year: b, 0

& June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
ASSETS ’
Current and othegkés,sé‘ts $ 4,342,341 $ 4,038,685
Capital assets, 1}5;"‘5~:: 3,199,256 2,955,589
TOTAL A8§E¥S 7,541,597 6,994,274
LW b
LIABILITIES”
Long-term liabilities 150,000 187,500
Other liabilities 500,262 741,807
TOTAL LIABILITIES 650,262 929,307
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 19,496 13,615
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 3,199,256 2,955,589
Restricted 832,154 833,544
Unrestricted 2,840,429 2,262,219
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6,871,839 $ 6,051,352




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended

REVENUES
Program revenues

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2024

Charges for services $ 334,153 $ 152,061
Operating grants and contributions 61,025 17,025
Capital grants and contributions 169,821 =
General revenues
Property taxes 1,808,670 1,685,758
State shared revenue 654,416 658,828
Intergovernmental 17,971 13,924
Unrestricted investment earnings 136,162 122,635
Miscellaneous 12,044 _\, 10,964
\‘qﬁ?
TOTAL REVENUES 3,194,26&@ 2,661,195
C
EXPENSES ‘}g\g
General government 38 776,434
Public safety 1,314 1,274,050
Public works <Z”" 103,172 144,077
Community and economic development ( 3 81,909 42,715
TOTAL EXPENSES /&:4\ 2,373,775 2,237,276
Change in net position ( Q 820,487 423,919
fg’s/tated 6,051,352 5,627,433

Net position, beginning of y:eeb;%
Net position, end of ye%r.;@

The Township’s governmental net osiﬁoﬁ:increased 13.6% from a year ago, from approximately $6.05 million
to $6.87 million. &

$ 6,871,839 $ 6,051,352

primarily account for thi ge. Property taxes increased by 7.3%, as property values in 2025 increased
compared to 2024. Ch or services increased due to reimbursements to the General Fund from the Building

Department Fund.

Total governmental revenés ereased $533,067 or 20%. Increase in property taxes and charges for services

The Township’s total governmental expenses increased approximately $136,500 or 6% from the prior year.
Increase in expenses were due to increases in wages, increases in attorney fees due primarily to code
enforcement, increases in building inspections due to permit activity, and costs associated with the new townhall

project.

The Township’s Funds

Our analysis of the Township’s major funds begins on page 11, following the government-wide financial
statements. The fund financial statements provide detail information about the most significant funds, not the
Township as a whole. The Township Trustees create funds to help manage money for specific purposes as well
as to show accountability for certain activities, such as special property tax mileages. The Township had four
major governmental funds for the current year, the General Fund, Fire and Emergency Fund, Capital Projects

Fund, and Farmstead Capital Projects Fund.



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The General Fund pays for most of the Township’s governmental services. However, the most significant
governmental service within the General Fund is general government, which incurred expenditures of $929,926 in
2025, which was an increase of $131,513, or 16.5%, from 2024 due partially to moving a position from the Building
Department Fund back to the General Fund. Total General Fund revenues increased from a year ago by $165,806,
due to increases in property tax values as well as intergovernmental revenues and charges for services. Total
General Fund expenditures and other financing uses for 2025 were more than revenues and other financing
sources resulting in a decrease in fund balance of $147,540. Ending fund balance was $1,539,394 of which
$230,668 was restricted or nonspendable, $362,638 was assigned for subsequent year’s expenditures, and the
remaining $946,088 was unassigned.

The Fire and Emergency fund balance increased $13,298 from the previous year. This increase is mainly due to a
larger increase in tax revenues than the increase in expenditures in the current year.
\
The Capital Projects fund balance increased $528,750 from the previous year due t{) trgmsfel from general fund in
the current year. !
( ‘| "
The Farmstead Capital Projects fund balance decreased $1,575 from the“%]grévious year due to direct capital
expenditures incurred in the current year. ’

General Fund Budgetary Highlights o N

-
Over the course of the year, the Township amended the blndgeﬁt\s t’z’zP(e into account events during the year related
to increase in tax base and treasury rate for property tagf(l evenue and interest rate for interest income. Actual
General Fund revenues totaled $1,654,967, or $30 6%1 under the final amended budget which was increased
from the original budget by $8,750.

e.ﬁ  »

The Township's actual General Fund expendituye gn‘i‘i othet financing uses totaled $1,802,507, or $503,074 below
the final amended budget which was 1ncrea§\eﬁ om the original budget by $8,750. All departments were able to
underspend their budget so overall expeqdl 1irés were below the amended budget.

Capital Asset Administration »

The Township’s investment in ?:a 1tal assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2025, amounted to
$3,199,256, net of accumul t§ depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in
progress, buildings, maghiqe and equipment, and office equipment and furniture. In 2025, $256,696 of
expenditures were ca[jitafized in the government-wide financial statements for additions to construction in
progress related to the faimstead and Township hall. More detailed information concerning capital assets can be
found within Note 4 to the basic financial statements,

Long-Term Obligations

The Township’s long-term debt consist of construction debt entered into during fiscal year 2020, which amounts
to $150,000 as of June 30, 2025. More detailed information can be found within Note 5 of the basic financial
statements.



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

There are several economic factors that will challenge the Township in the next several years. These include state
revenue sharing not keeping up with inflation and property tax values. The Township’s tax base continues to
increase as the Township’s valuation and construction of new single family homes increase. Future construction
of new homes will continue to increase with future developments.

The Township does not consider it to be financially necessary to levy the maximum allowable millage.

These factors were considered in the preparation of the Township's fiscal year 2025-2026 budget.

Contacting the Township’s Management

The financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, an mvestors with a general
overview of the Township’s finances and to show the Township’s accountability e money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome y% contact the Township of Holly
at 102 Civic Dr., Holly, MI 48442. A\;



BASIC FINANCIAL STATE

@\

D
Co\o
S



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025

Governmental

Activities
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 4,117,593
Accounts receivable 18,940
Due from others 1,002
Due from other governmental units 137,449
Prepaids 11,705
- Total current assets h\é 4,286,689
Noncurrent assets _ Q\
Net other postemployment benefits asset C:;\ 55,652
Capital assets not being depreciated \%\‘:_ 2,985,840
Capital asset, net of accumulated depreciation Ve P 213,416
{/
Total noncurrent assets Q*j 3,254,908

A\O 7,541,597

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES C)
Current liabilities < </
Accounts payable \) 110,006
Due to other governmental units Q) 139,008
Due to others \) 215,094
Unearned revenue 36,154

Current portion of long-term de})t 37,500
Total current habllltle€< 537,762
Noncurrent llabllltIQ
Noncurrent po flong-term debt 112,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES 650,262
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 19,496
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 3,199,256
Restricted
Net other postemployment benefits 55,652
Public safety 557,539
Public, educational, and governmental (PEG) fees 103,714
Metro act funds 115,249
Unrestricted 2,840,429
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6,871,839

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Functions/Programs Expenses

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Services Contributions

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
in Net Position

Governmental activities

General government $ 877,380 $ 60,497 $ 55,265 $ 169,821 $  (591,797)

Public safety 1,311,314 260,146 - - (1,051,168)

Public works 103,172 - - - (103,172)

Community and economic development 81,909 13,510 5,760 - (62,639)

Total governmental activities $ 2,373,775 $ 334,153 $ 61,025 $ 169,821 (1,808,776)
‘\

General revenues
Property taxes
State shared revenue
Intergovernmental
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues < ¢

Change in net position (‘ ( 3

\

Net position, begmnmgfg\fthe year as previously reported

Adjustment to beglgnm% net position

\-( /

Net p051t19n) bggmmng of the year as restated

LY

Net pbg\mt)n ‘end of the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

10

1,808,670
654,416
17,971
136,162
12,044

2,629,263

820,487

6,276,352

(225,000)

6,051,352

$ 6,871,839



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2025
Fire and Farmstead Total
Emergency Capital Capital Nonmajor
Special Projects Projects Governmental
General Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1635841 $ 596211  $ 1299962 $ 293,603 ¢ 291,976  § 4,117,593
Accounts receivable 15,859 - - - 3,081 18,940
Due from other funds 150,000 - - - = 150,000
Due from other governmental units 137,449 - - - 137,449
Due from others 1,002 - - 1,002
Prepaids 11,705 - - - 11,705
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,951,856 $ 596,211 $ 1,299,962 $ 293,603 § 295,057 $ 4,436,689
T
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES \
LIABILITIES ©
Account payable $ 58360 § - % 21281 % @ $ 14,803  § 110,006
Due to other governmental units 139,008 - \ - 139,008
Due to others 215,094 - A - 215,094
Due to other funds - 150,000 Q/ - 150,000
Unearned revenue - 36,154 - 36,154
TOTAL LIABILITIES 412,462 150,000 245281 s 51,716 14,803 650,262
FUND BALANCES &U
Nonspendable
Prepaids 11,705 - - . 11,705
Restricted Q
Public safety - = 111,328 557,539
PEG fees 103,714 - . 103,714
Metro act funds 115,249 5 - 115,249
Assigned %
Capital projects - 1,278,681 241,887 168,926 1,689,494
Subsequent year's expenditures 362,6% - . - = 362,638
Unassigned 946,088 - - = 946,088
TOTAL FUND BALANCES Aé’/i§39,394 446,211 1,278,681 241,887 280,254 3,786,427
TOTAL LIABILITIES
$ 596,211 $ 1,299,962 $ 293,603 $ 295,057 $ 4,436,689

AND FUND BALANCES <%" % 1,951,856

Q

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

11



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are

different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 4,458,760
Accumulated depreciation is (1,259,504)
Capital assets, net c\ﬁ S\

P adih
(&
Some assets are not current financial resources and therefore are not r@iq_rtgd in the

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Noncurrent assets at year-end £arisist of:
;.‘";Dl\\(. 7 3
Net other postemployment benefits asset .

,()
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the cux‘ﬁegt period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabifities at year-end consist of:
e

Long-term debt

L N

OPEB-related amounts are not due and\%p‘ajz?ble in the current period or do not
represent current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
: J

Deferred inflows related to the net OPEB asset

& 5-;.‘

Net position of governmental dctivities

\( '
e ¢
'OA

'._E.\‘.

A N

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

12

$ 3,786,427

3,199,256

55,652

(150,000)

(19,496)

$ 6,871,839




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Community and economic development
Capital outlay
Debt service

Principal

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, beginning of year

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Fire and Farmstead Total
Emergency Capital Capital Nonmajor
Special Projects Projects Governmental
General Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 697,197 $ 1,111,473 $ - $ - - $ 1,808,670
56,580 - - - 176,046 232,626
733,412 - - - 733,412
101,527 - - - - 101,527
54,207 5,783 52,562 11,489 12,121 136,162
12,044 - - 169,821 - 181,865
1,654,967 1,117,256 52,562 181,310 188,167 3,194,262
929,926 - - \ - 929,926
- 1,103,958 - - 207,356 1,311,314
103,172 - - \ - - 103,172
81,909 - - _A - - 81,909
E: - 73,81 182,885 - 256,697
37,500 - Fole - - 37,500
N\
1,152,507 1,103,958 ,812 182,885 207,356 2,720,518
502,460 13,% (21,250) (1,575) (19,189) 473,744
O
u = 550,000 - 100,000 650,000
(650,0000 N\Y 5 2 - = (650,000)
e
650000 - 550,000 - 100,000 -
[1&2)4[}] 13,298 528,750 (1,575) 80,811 473,744
V4
/( 1,686,934 432,913 749,931 243,462 199,443 3,312,683
N
$ 1,539,394 $ 446,211 $ 1,278,681 $ 241,887 280,254 $ 3,786,427

Fund balances, end of year

K

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

13



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 473,744

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 256,696
Depreciation expense (1%,029)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 7 -\\\ 243,667

Certain transactions related to long-term debt are reported as e;ﬁgnc\ﬁtdres or other

financing sources/uses in governmental funds, but the borrm{%iué ‘intrease long-term

liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current year, the$e amounts consist of:

O
Principal payment on long-term debt i 37,500
L
Some expenses reported in the statement of actiyitiésgdé not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not repol_‘,g\é\c\l’asréxpenditures in the funds.

Vo X )
Change in net OPEB liability/laSs_‘feE_ 71,457
Change in deferred inﬂowi qf_}resbources related to OPEB (5,881)
Change in net position of gover;&mental activities $ 820,487

& N
% hd
W

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
14



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025

Other Post— Tax
Employment Collection
Health Benefits Custodial
Trust Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ 1,508
Investments 422,360 =
TOTAL ASSETS 422,360 1,508
LIABILITIES s
Undistributed receipts P, - 1,508
i
NET POSITION \§\
Restricted for other postemployment benefits Q,‘ 422,360 $ s

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
15



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Other Post- Tax
Employment Collection
Health Benefits Custodial
Trust Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Collections of taxes for other governments $ $ 16,520,081
Investment income 37.559 -
TOTAL ADDITIONS 37,559 16,520,081
DEDUCTIONS ( ; "
Payments of taxes collected for other governments e, fl\‘ -’ 16,520,081
Administrative expenses WO 843 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 843 16,520,081
CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 36,716
Net position, beginning of year < i 385,644 2
Net position, end of year / (9 J $ 422,360 $
{ : )
FOA

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
16



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Located in Oakland County, Michigan, the Township of Holly (the Township) is incorporated as a general law
Township in which citizens elect the seven-member Board of Trustees. The Township is not included in any
other governmental “reporting entity”, as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
since Trustees are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the authority to levy taxes, the
power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for
fiscal matters. The Township provides the following services to residents: general government, public safety,

public works, and community and economic development.

The financial statements of the Township have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The GASB is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and ﬁn%al reporting principles.

The Township’s more significant accounting policies are described below.
N\
Reporting Entity $:)

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the States of America, these financial
statements present the financial activities of the Township of H rimary government).

The inclusion of the activities of various agencies is bas@e manifestation of oversight criteria, relying

on such guidelines as the selection of the governing authonity, the designation of management, the ability to
exert significant influence on operations, and the a¢cquntability for fiscal matters. The accountability for
fiscal matters considers the possession of the bydgetary authority, the responsibility for surplus or deficit,
the controlling of fiscal management, and venue characteristics, whether a levy or a charge.
Consideration is also given to the scope of l;hy ervice. The scope of public service considers whether the
activity is for the benefit of the reporting %hand/or its residents and is within the geographic boundaries
of the reporting entity and generally \’&@7 e to its citizens.

.;?”) E

Based upon the application of these@,crﬁ:eria, the financial statements of the Township of Holly contain all the
funds controlled by the Board/6f Trustees.

Fiduciary Component Uni?;(

The Other Postempfoyyghent Health Benefits Trust Fund was established to account for the assets set aside
to fund the Townshly of Holly’s other postemployment health benefit plan. The primary purpose of the
Trust is to provide the necessary funding for the retiree health insurance premiums provided to eligible
Township employees during retirement. The Trust was established through MERS Retiree Health Funding
Vehicle, with the Township’s Board serving as the trustees. The assets of the Trust are for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries, and the assets shall not be diverted to any other purchase
prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities. The assets are protected from any of the Township’s creditors. The
Board has the ability to exercise oversight responsibility, specifically in the area of designation of

management.

Related Organizations

Holly Township Parks and Recreation - Parks and Recreation is a legally separate organization established to
provide and maintain recreational programs and facilities for citizens of Holly Township. Parks and
Recreation is governed by an elected five-member Board. Separate audited financial statements for their
most recent year ended June 30 are available at 5142 E. Holly Road, Holly, Michigan 48442.

17



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related Organizations (continued)

Holly Township Library - the Library is a legally separate organization established to offer library services to
residents of Holly Township. The Library is governed by a five-member Board elected by the governing
body. Separate audited financial statements for their most recent year ended June 30 are available at 1116
N. Saginaw Street, Holly, Michigan 48442.

Basis of Presentation

LN

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
Ny
% ’
The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the governﬁie{‘;\it?Wide financial statements)
present information for the primary government as a whole. All n n__\tj_ui:i'ary activities of the primary
government are included (i.e,, fiduciary fund activities are not includeq in the government-wide financial
statements). Interfund activity has been eliminated in the preparai'{m} of these statements,
ALY
o e i " ¥ .
The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and the
program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are\ pgcifically associated with a service, program,
or department and are therefore clearly identifiable ‘td\a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include chargé$to recipients for goods or services that are restricted
to meeting the operational requirements of that finction. Revenues that are not required to be presented
as program revenues are general revenues. Tklif:s'{..m;f;?udes taxes, interest, unrestricted state revenue sharing
payments, and other general revenues and §hogvs) how governmental functions are either self-financing or
supported by general revenues, N?,
« \V
ND)
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &)
The fund financial statemen’.ts";g‘re&sent the Township’s individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor
funds. Separate financial st@emé’nts are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though
the later are excluded froify #h2 government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds

are reported as separajc(é‘cﬁlumns in the fund financial statements.
The Township of Hoﬁ)> reports the following Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund is the Township of Holly’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except for those that are required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The Fire and Emergency Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the activities of the
Township’s fire and emergency services, funded mainly with property tax revenues.

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financing and construction of the Township's major
equipmentand building and improvements. Such capital projects are generally funded by transfers from
the General Fund.

The Farmstead Capital Project Fund is used to account for financing and construction of the Township’s

farmstead building and improvements. Such capital projects are generally funded by outside
contributions and grants as well as transfers from the General Fund.

18



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of Presentation (continued)

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Additionally, the Township reports the following Fund Types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources thatare
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for financing and construction rela the Township's major
equipment and improvements related to road improvements. Such capit cts are generally funded
by transfers from the General Fund. g

Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund accounts for the ac \htion of resources to be used for
certain healthcare costs to retirees of the Township. (s

Custodial Funds are custodial in nature and are used toa€co a1t for assets held by the Township as the
trustee or as the agent for others. /&6

Measurement Focus

The government-wide and fiduciary financi %’ments are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus, similar to that used b t% ess enterprises or not-for-profit organizations. Because
another measurement focus is used in vernmental fund financial statements, reconciliations to the
government-wide financial statemex&t&rovided that explain the differences in detail.

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
t assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred

measurement focus, only cu

inflows of resources genelé/ are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e,, régnites and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in fun(gﬁnce.

Basis of Accountin;:‘)

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless

of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both “measurable”
and “available to finance expenditures of the current period”). The length of time used for “available” for
purposes of reventue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days. Revenues that
are considered measurable but not available are recorded as a receivable and unavailable revenue.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

19



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of Accounting (continued)

If/when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Township's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Additions are recognized when
earned, and deductions are recognized when incurred.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting iz

L
b,

Annual budgets for the general and special revenue funds are adopted in ¢ _ﬁfp‘ tance with Michigan Law.
The budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis, which is cqns;i_s‘t; t with generally accepted
accounting principles. st N

gy, o=
%
°

The Township follows these procedures in establishing the bu’c}getary data reflected in the financial
statements: £ 7__)_ b,
—

a. Priorto]uly 1, the annual budgets are legally ado ,itéq at the activity level through passage of a Board
resolution after a public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer comments. After the budget is adopted,
all transfers of budgeted amounts betweéq activities or any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of the fund or activity mu{st bie 3pproved by the Township Board.

/

b. Formal budgetary integration is emﬁlloyed as a management control device during the year.

5

¢.  The Township does not emplay }ncumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary
integration, Appropriations' ungsed at June 30 are not carried forward to the following fiscal year.

d. Budgeted amounts a;éfl eported as originally adopted or amended by the Township Board during
the year. Individua¥k ameﬁdments were appropriately approved by the Township Board as required.

Cash )\“; ;

Cash includes amountg in demand deposit accounts.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales

price at current exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at
estimated fair value.

In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the Township of Holly is authorized to invest in the following
investment vehicles:

a. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the
United States.

20



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments (continued)

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or
nationally chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings bank,
or credit union whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United States government and which
maintains a principal office or branch office located in this State under the laws of the State or the
United States, but only if the bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, or credit union is eligible
to be a depository of surplus funds belonging to the State under Section 6 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.146.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highesﬁhssiﬁcations established
by not less than two standard rating services, and which matures no@ than 270 days after the

date of purchase. cé\

d. The United States government or federal agency obligatio% ufchase agreements.
e. Bankers' acceptances of United States banks. Q.-:,

f. Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles &@re legal for direct investment by local units

of government in Michigan.
A
Michigan Compiled Laws allow for collateralizatifn 9f government deposits, if the assets for pledging are
acceptable to the State Treasurer under Secti 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.143, to secure deposits of State
surplus funds, securities issued by the Fede oan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage
Association, or Government National Mo Association.
Receivables (};)

s A
Receivables have been recogrfzed for all significant amounts due to the Township in accordance with the
accounting principles usedé the particular fund. Valuation reserves have not been provided because
management believes co n is not considered doubtful and any uncollectible amounts would not be

considered Signiﬁcaan,
Prepaids Q

Prepaid expenditures in the governmental funds are expected to be written off within the next fiscal year,
are included in current assets. Reported prepaid expenditures are equally offset by nonspendable fund
balance, which indicates they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though they are a
component of fund balance.

Due from Other Governmental Units

Due from other governmental units consists of amounts due from the State of Michigan or other
governments for various payments and grants.

21



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are those with an acquisition cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life
of more than one year. Capital assets are not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital
acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in the governmental funds, and the related assets
are reported in the government-wide financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost
where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition cost on the date received.
LY

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value OfgpféaSSEt or materially extend
A . . . . LY r
asset lives are not capitalized. Land and construction in progress are noE dépreCiated. The other assets are

depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful liYSs__:-__"?
Y
Building 26&5 years
Machinery and equipment \{9 710 years
Office furniture and equipment -, ™ 5-10 years
Long-term Qbligations e

Long-term debt and other long-term obligation§ 'él;;e")recognized as a liability in the government-wide
financial statements when incurred. The portidn of those liabilities expected to be paid within the next year
is a current liability with the remaining amouht¥’shown as long-term. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of tlie’ bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond ptemjum or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
debt proceeds received, are reportedgs))e@enses.

Unearned Revenue A

/
<,

The Township reports un‘g?tﬁed revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. TOA

\ : ) ¥
Due to Others W

Due to others consists of amouhts due to other parties for various services incurred and escrows held by
Township.

Net OPEB Liability (Asset

The Township records a net OPEB liability (asset) for the difference between the total OPEB liability and the
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position.

22



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Township has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category
which are future resources yet to be recognized in relation to other postemployment benefits calculation.

Details of Fund Balance Classifications ‘
% wi

Fund balance classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the e @ hich a government is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources repgstedt governmental funds. The
following are the five classifications of fund balance under this standa§

QT‘

Nonspendable - assets that are not available in a spend@ orm such as inventory, prepaid
expenditures, and long-term receivables not expected to b@g erted to cash in the near term. It also
includes funds that are legally or contractually require b& maintained intact such as the corpus of a
permanent fund or foundation. /&b

Restricted - amounts that are required by externdggarties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints
are externally imposed by creditors, grantor, @tributors or laws, regulations or enabling legislation.

Committed - amounts constrained on uge i é‘ed by formal action of the government's highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., Board\fThstee, etc.).

Assigned - amounts intended to oayed for specific purposes. This is determined by the governing body,
the budget or finance committeg, or a delegated municipality official.

Unassigned - all othei resources; the remaining fund balance after nonspendable, restrictions,

commitments, and as? ents. This class only occurs in the General Fund, except for cases of negative

fund balances. N ive fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the

deficit occurs 1@

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

For committed fund balance, the Township of Holly’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Board
of Trustees. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish a fund balance commitment is a
resolution of the Board of Trustees. If a fund balance commitment is made, the commitment remains in

effect until a resolution is made to remove it.

For assigned fund balance, the Township has not approved a policy indicating who is authorized to assign
amounts to a specific purpose. In the absence of such a policy, the authority to assign fund balance remains

with the Board of Trustees.

When the Township incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund balance classifications can
be used it is the Township’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, then committed, assigned, and finally

unassigned.

23



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Restricted Net Position

Restrictions of net position shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate restrictions that
have been imposed by outside sources, which preclude a portion of net position from their use for
unrestricted purposes.

Property Taxes

The Township of Holly bills and collects its own property taxes. The Township of Holly’s property tax
revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are highlighted_\i;e fhe following paragraph:
&\
Property taxes are levied by Township of Holly on December 1 onéh’é&s‘a Xable valuation of property
located in the Township as of the preceding December 31 (the lien date Yahd are payable without penalty
through February 14. These tax bills include the Township’s owi\property taxes and taxes billed on
behalf of Oakland County and the school districts within the Téwnship boundaries. Taxes not collected
as of March 1 are turned over to Oakland County for collectiéﬁ, which advances the Township 100% for
the delinquent taxes. Collections and remittances of E}}ltixx\és are accounted for in the Tax Collection
Custodial Fund, "-:\ J
’ Y
The Township of Holly is permitted to levy taxes up td 14,2229 mills ($1.2229 per $1,000 of taxable valuation)
for general governmental services and 4.0000 milfs (_$4':OO per $1,000 of taxable valuation) for the fire and
emergency services. For the year ended June{30, 2025, the Township levied 1.0000 mills per $1,000 of
taxable valuation for general governmental sertjtés and 4.0000 mills per $1,000 of taxable valuation for the
fire and emergency services. The total taﬁa@!_ﬁ‘.falue for the 2024 levy for property within the Township of
Holly was $475,369,420. The taxable yfaLué)ofl‘eal and personal property for the fire and emergency services
special assessments was $273,942,3-§f].) -

Property taxes levied in Decqmﬁgrhre recognized as revenues in the current fiscal year. Taxes collected on
behalf of the school districts@nd Oakland County are turned over to the districts and the County immediately
following collection ancl_\aig'? atcounted for in a designated custodial fund.
'{»/,-i"y o’

The Township's taxy r‘@fenue have been reduced by tax abatements but management has determined these
amounts to immateridl to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

24



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2025, the Township had deposits and investments subject to the following risk:

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of June 30, 2025, $817,763 of the Township's bank balance of $1,760,969 was exposed to
custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized. The carrying value on the books for
deposits at the end of the year was $1,264,789. The Township had $700 of imprest cash on hand. The
Townships investment policy states that with the exception of authorized investment pools and individual
fund deposits required to meet the Township's cash flow demands, an amoynt not greater than the
prevailing federal (FDIC/NIUA) deposit insurance limitations at the time of de or investment shall be
deposited or invested in an individual “financial institution”, as defined by ML %29.91 subsection 5

Custodial Credit Risk - [nvestments \%9

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure (E counterparty, the Township will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral secug atare in the possession of an outside

- O
Interest Rate Risk /{:{\ '

ship will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that
due to changes in market interestrates, by; structuring
re to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations,

In accordance with its investment policy, the To
the market value of securities in the portfolio
the investment portfolio so that securiti

thereby avoiding the need to sell securiti the open market; and, investing operating funds primarily in
shorter-term securities, liquid asset filnd$) money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools and
limiting the average maturity in accokdance with the Township’s cash requirements. The average maturities
of investments are noted below; ,
Weighted
Average
Fair Value Maturity (Years)
$ 2,357,432 0.1053
496,180 0.3699
$ 2,853,612
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.4752

One day maturity equals 0.0027, one year equals 1.00.
Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to a prime or better rating issued by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). Obligations of the U.S. government or
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not
require disclosure of credit quality.

Investment Type Fair Value Rating Rating Agency
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool $ 2,357,432 AAAmM S&P



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Township has adopted a policy that indicates how the Township will minimize concentration of credit
risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Township's investment in a single issuer, by
diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or
issuer will be minimized. Obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

Due in
Investment Type Fair Value No Maturity Due < 1 Year 1-5 Years Moody Rating
\
Fixed Income =
U.S. Treasury Securities $ 496,180 $ 5 $ 496,180 £\ : n/a
Foreign Currency Risk \@ )

\

The Township is not authorized to invest in investments which l@aﬁé-thi's type of risk.
AN

Fair Value Measurement () \

The Township categorizes its fair value measurements ‘within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The lliel_*gt'r(‘chy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. The hierarchy givesﬁtﬁe }_,ighest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level ¥ pieasurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The threq;@v‘?lﬁﬁf the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1:  Quoted prices in activexnaykets for identical securities.
-
Level 2: Prices determiqedvpsi‘i{g other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs

that other m}arﬁgt participants may use in pricing a security. These may include prices for
similar secuTities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk and others.
O

Level 3: Priceajcrlét\érmined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices
on%}jsﬁpvable inputs are unavailable or deemed less relevant, unobservable inputs may be
usedv” Unobservable inputs reflect the Township’s own assumptions about the factors
market participants would use in pricing an investment and would be based on the best

information available.,

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Investments that are
measured at fair value using net asset per value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not
classified in the fair value hierarchy below.

Balance at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 June 30, 2025
Investments by fair value level
U.S. Treasury Securities $ 496,180 $ - % - $ 496,180

26



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value Per Share

The Township holds shares or interest in an investment pool and MERS where the fair value of the
investments is measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the
investment companies as a practical expedient.

The Michigan CLASS investment pool invest in U.S. Treasury obligations, federal agency obligations of the
U.S. government, high-grade commercial paper (rated “A1” or better), collateralized bank deposits,
repurchase agreements (collateralized at 102 percent by treasuries and agencies), and approved money
market funds. The program is designed to meet the needs of Michigan public sectgr investors. It purchases
securities that are legally permissible under state statues and are available févestment by Michigan
counties, cities, townships, school districts, authorities, and other public age@.

preservation of principal and meet the daily liquidity needs of partic ERS total market portfolio are

MERS invests assets in a manner which will seek the highest inv s@t return consistent with the
reported at their individual Net Asset Values. .

At the year ended June 30, 2025, the fair value, unfunde@m%itments, and redemption rules of those

investments are as follows: & =
Redemption
Unfunded Frequency, Redemption
* Investment Type Fair Valu{ . Commitments if Eligible Notice Period
‘S%/
Primary Government i;;?'
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool $ o 432 $ - No restrictions None
A4
Fiduciary Funds %
MERS Total Market Portfolio 4 422,360 - No restrictions None

: ‘(< $ 2779792 _$ 5
The following summariz ‘Qleiategorization of deposits and investments as of June 30, 2025:

; tatement of Net Position

Cash and investments $ 4,117,593

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Cash 1,508
Investments 422,360
Total $ 4,541,461

Deposits and Investments

Deposits
Checking and savings accounts $ 1,264,789
Investments 3,275,972
Cash on hand ' 700
Total $ 4,541,461

27



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY
The amount of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Due to General Fund from:
Fire and Emergency Fund $ 150,000

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of transactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to another fund. Balances at
the end of the year for transfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date.

N
The General Fund transferred $550,000 to the Capital Projects Fund and $100,000%g-Ronmajor governmental
funds for the purpose of current year capital outlay needs as well as preparing ﬁg\(‘nép\ds in the future.

&S
.
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS \
'<:-"‘":’ 5
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as fo]]mif{g? >
7 »
Restated A ( }
Balance , N\ Balance
July 1, 2024 i\ Additions Deletions June 30, 2025
Governmental activities ( ) ’
Capital assets not being depreciated e{ 73
Land W <a;"159 $ - % = § 1,022,159
Construction in progress 4 )1}7 6,985 256,696 - 1,963,681
) "2\ 3 ? ¥ ]
Capital assets not being depreciated (o~ 2,729,144 256,696 - 2,985,840
Capital assets being depreciated A "
Buildings ‘\':?: N 613,919 - - 613,919
Machinery & Equipment ¢ "%, 571,562 - - 571,562
Office Equipment & Furgl;;it)_l%’ 287,439 - - 287,439
Subtotal D 1,472,920 - : 1,472,920
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (606,767) (1,160) - (607,927)
Machinery & Equipment (365,284) (8,552) - (373,836)
Office Equipment & Furniture (274,424) (3,317) - (277,741)
Subtotal : (1,246,475) (13,029) - (1,259,504)
Net capital assets being depreciated 226,445 (13,029) - 213,416
Total net capital assets § 2,955,589 $ 243,667 $ - $ 3,199,256

Depreciation expense was charged to general government functions in governmental activities in the amount of
$13,029.

28



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations (including current portion) of the Township for
the year ended June 30, 2025:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2024 Additions Deductions June 30, 2025 One Year
Direct placement
North Holly Road
Constructiondebt $ 187,500 $ - $ (37,500) $ 150,000 $ 37,500

project where the Township agreed to contribute $375,000 toward the project digid@q into ten equal principal-

In 2020, the Township entered into an agreement with Oakland County for the NortizHolly Road construction
only installments of $37,500 through January 1, 2029. Debt service requiremen\ aturity are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Amo
2026 $ 00
2027 500
2028 37,500
2029 g 37,500
" Total A;\ $ 150,000

activities of $150,000 contains provisions tha event of default, either by (1) unable to make principal or
interest payments (2) false or misrepre n n is made to the lender (3) become insolvent or make an
assignment for the benefit of its creditor§ the lender at any time in good faith believes that the prospect of
payment of any indebtedness is 1mpan‘ed pon the occurrence of any default event, the outstanding amounts,

including accrued interest becom mmedlately due and payable.

The Township’s outstanding notes from direct ?‘gﬁwmgs and direct placements related to governmental

L
NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGE V'

The Township is expo@o various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Township carries commercial insurance
to cover any potential claims associated with these risks and has had no claims that exceeded the insurance

coverage during the past three years.

NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Township of Holly Group Pension Plan is a defined contribution pension plan, held in trust by an outside
third-party administrator.

Those eligible for the Plan include all elected officials, the Building Administrator and all other appointed officials
working 35 hours or more per week. The Township contributes 10% of a participant's compensation. The
participants may make voluntary, after-tax contributions from 1% to 10% of their compensation. Total
contributions by the Township for the year ended June 30, 2025, were $41,314. There were six participants in

the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2025.

29



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN (continued)

Benefits attributable to all contributions vest immediately, investment of plan assets is the responsibility of the
participant (e.g, self-directed investment of individual accounts by participants).

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The Township provides postemployment healthcare benefits to certain retirees under a single employer defined
benefit plan (the “Plan”), effective July 1, 2016, governed by the Township Board. Those eligible for the Plan
include any person who has continuously served the Township for a period of 25 ye ;br more as an employee,
elected official, or both. Eligible retirees receive Township-paid health insurance fb%{'\rving retirement from the
Township. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial stateme t\AE June 30, 2025, the date of
the most recent alternative measurement method, the Plan covered six mel'g €rg, all active.

Benefits Provided and Contributions ___{‘{;’ ‘n

((\) 2 of

The Township’s contribution is based on projected pay—as-you/go\ﬁ\l‘rﬂncing requirements. For the year ended
June 30, 2025, the Township did not make any contribution{giﬁ th‘e Plan. There are no contributions required
by the Plan participants. .

*

£
AN

O
Vg - ,;})

The Township's net OPEB liability (asset) was iﬁ?@ﬁred as of June 30, 2025, and was determined using the
alternative measurement method, as permitte:d_\@ ASB 75, as of that date.

Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Changes in Net OPEB Liability (Asset) ()~

The components of the change inf.tﬁ};_\nét OPEB liability (asset) are summarized as follows:

<,
O Plan Net OPEB
A Total OPEB Fiduciary Liability (Asset)
£ ) » Liability (a) Net Position (b) (a) - (b)
N
Balances at June 30, 2024 $ 401,449 $ 385,644 $ 15,805
Changes for the year

Service cost 16,065 - 16,065
Interest 16,179 - 16,179
Differences between expected and actual experience 30,839 30,839
Effect of changes in assumptions (97,824) - (97,824)
Net investment income - 37,559 (37,559)
Administrative expenses . (843) 843
Net changes (34,741) 36,716 (71,457)
Balances at June 30, 2025 $ 366,708 $ 422,360 $ (55,652)




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The net OPEB liability (asset) was determined using the alternative measurement method as of June 30, 2025 using
the following actuarial assumptions (which were determined by management utilizing the best information
available), applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Discount Rate - 5.0%
Long-Term Rate of Return - 5.0%

Salary Increases - 2.5% . \

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate - 5.80%, decreasing 0.1% in year 2 and 3 then d @hg 0.2% each year until an
ultimate rate of 4.10% is achieved. é&

Retirement Age for Active Employees - Based on the historical average. "Efement age for the covered group,
active OPEB Plan members were assumed to retire at age 65.

Mortality Tables - Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortalieja es, with mortality improvement projected

for 10 years. &

Turnover - Turnover data was obtained from the Ué\(%:fﬁce of Personnel Management regarding the most
recent experience of the employee group covered @e ederal Employees Retirement System.

Health Insurance Premiums - 2024 health i %ﬂce premiums for retirees were used as the basis for
calculation of the present value of total be be paid.

Probability of Accepting Benefits - T, ability of participants accepting benefits once they meet the 25
year service requirement was assumed-dt 100%.

cost over time, 4
Long-term Expected Rate :?(K:n

The long-term expected r'dte of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a model method in which
the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment and
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The targetallocation and best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Y4
Future Contributions - Itis agggted that future contributions to the plan will remain a level percent of the total

Long-term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Moderately conservative balanced 100.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Risk adjustment 0.00%
5.00%

Investment rate of return

31



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in Assumptions

» The discount rate increased from 3.875% to 5.00%.
» The bond yield rate increased from 3.50% to 4.00%.
» The salary increase changed from 3.00% to 2.50%.

» Health care cost trend rate increased from 4.70% to 5.809%, as a result of factors such as medical

inflation, utilization of health care services, plan design, and technological imp\rovements.
=D
Changes in Benefits n 3\\
There were no changes in benefit terms during plan year 2025. é: e
Discount Rate Q(/ 'S
LAY

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 5.009 for 2025. The discount rate was based on a
bond yield of 4.00%. The projection of cash flows used to det 'm,‘;ne the discount rate assumes that employer
and employee contributions will be made at the rates agre d upon for employees and the actuarially determined
rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the @REB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to pay all projected future benefit paymen_gs@f urrent active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan i'{fi\v’é:étments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liabili’qé_,,) \)
\;*‘.(5 )

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Ass;t_‘r\ggfﬁhanges in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB Jiabiiity (asset) of the Township, calculated using the discount rate of
5.00%, as well as what the Town tip's net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1% lower (4.00%) of A% higher (6.00%) than the current rate:

e ?} N
:.:ef/‘j § Current
4 )\ 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

£
L 4

%
A4

$ 29816  $  (55652) $  (121,718)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the Township, calculated using the healthcare cost trend
rate of 5.80%, as well as what the Township’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a
healthcare cost trend rate that is 1% lower (4.80%) or 1% higher (6.80%) than the current rate:

Current
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

$ (128322) §  (55652) $ 39,987

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Township recognized OPEB benefit of $65,576.

32



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

The Township reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB for the net difference between projected
and actual earnings on plan investments in the amount of $19,496.

The amount reported as OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense as

follows:
Year Ending

June 30, Amount
2026 $ 476
2027 (8,961)

2028 (7,353) %
2029 (3,658) O

N
Total $ 19,
&

From time to time, the Township may be named as a defe a@n various lawsuits and claims arising in the
normal course of operations. In the aggregate, these claims mayseek monetary damages in significant amounts.
To the extent the outcome of such litigation has beep./deétermined to result in probably financial loss to the
Township, such loss has been accrued in the accom?@lg basic financial statements. Litigation where loss to

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES

the Township is reasonable possible has not been ed. In the opinion of management, the ultimate outcome
of these claims will not materially affect the 0% pns of the Township.

NOTE 10 - ADJUSTMENTS TO BEGINN@\IET POSITION
/7
The beginning net position was {,«f‘;{q:ced to remove capital assets related to infrastructure from the Township’s
capital assets. During fiscal yea %025, the change to beginning net position is as follows:
uy

Q ol Net Position

<

Balances as of June 30, 2024, as previously stated $ 6,276,352
Error correction (225,000)
Balances as of July 1, 2024, as restated $ 6,051,352

33



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements. This Statement
establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements - or modifies existing requirements - related
to the following:

a. Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A);
i. Requires that the information presented in MD&A be limited to the related topics discussed in
five specific sections:
1) Overview of the Financial Statements,
2) Financial Summary,
3) Detailed Analyses, .
4) Significant Capital Asset and Long-Term Financing Activity, e,
5) Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions; ) \(\ t)
ii.  Stresses detailed analyses should explain why balances and results'of operations changed rather
than simply presenting the amounts or percentages by whfc_ﬁ thay changed;
iii. ~ Removes the requirement for discussion of significant.vayiations between original and final
budget amounts and between final budget amounts anﬂ(,agtUal results;
b.  Unusual or infrequent items; LY

\
c. Presentation of the proprietary fund statement of rey{el‘[ue}, expenses, and changes in fund net position;
.. Requires that the proprietary fund stateméntof revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net
position continue to distinguish betv.regh“-qperating and nonoperating revenues and expenses
and clarifies the definition of operatjn’ agd’nonoperating revenues and expenses;
ii, Requires that a subtotal for operagf@-‘{bbbrrfe (loss) and noncapital subsidies be presented before
reporting other nonoperating?ge)ve‘}%ués and expenses and defines subsidies;

)
d. Information about major componeht uhits in basic financial statements should be presented separately
in the statement of net positiof-did statement of activities unless it reduces the readability of the
statements in which case combining statements of should be presented after the fund financial

"
"4

statements; A

e. Budgetary comparisoifjnformation should include variances between original and final budget amounts
and variances b_et_j'_'w‘h& final budget and actual amounts with explanations of significant variances
required to be.p\r’é?‘ented in the notes to RSI.

The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted during the 2025-2026 fiscal year.

In September 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets. This Statement
requires certain types of capital assets to be disclosed separately in the capital assets note disclosures required
by Statement No. 34. Lease assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, and intangible right-
to-use assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements, should be disclosed separately by major class of underlying asset in the
capital assets note disclosures. Subscription assets recognized in accordance with Statement No.
96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, also should be separately disclosed. In addition,
this Statement requires intangible assets other than those three types to be disclosed separately by major class.
This Statement also requires additional disclosures for capital assets held for sale. The Township is currently
evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2025-2026
fiscal year.

34



S
J
2

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INQ/ ATION

35



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 709,750 $ 709,750 $ 697,197 $ (12,553)
Licenses and permits 63,000 63,000 56,580 (6,420)
Intergovernmental 657,780 657,780 733,412 75,632
Charges for services 93,606 93,606 101,527 7,921
Investment income 18,600 18,600 54,207 35,607
Other 134,162 142,912 12,044 (130,868)
“‘\
L, N
TOTAL REVENUES 1,676,898 1,685,648 1,654,967 (30,681)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Board of trustees 18,925 10,081 8,844
Supervisor 95,822 93,451 2,371
Elections 55,000 33,160 21,840
Assessor 106,000 , L 106,000 102,220 3,780
Clerk 160,330 /%, 160,330 151,854 8,476
Board of review 2915¢ % 2915 907 2,008
Treasurer 150, 150,450 146,038 4,412
Code Enforcement 61,703) 61,703 58,325 3,378
General services 309277 392,102 329,035 63,067
Other ___1g8000 188,000 4,855 183,145
g =~
& N p
Total general government R N\ M,218,372 1,231,247 929,926 301,321
Public works
Department of public works , ¢ 144,796 139,796 103,172 36,624
Community and economicd_'%velc;i')ment
Community developm’é\ht 123,401 124,276 81,909 42,367
r@ R
Debt service P\

Principal N ) 37,500 37,500 37,500 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,524,069 1,532,819 1,152,507 380,312
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES 152,829 152,829 502,460 349,631
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out (772,762) (772,762) (650,000) 122,762
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (619,933) (619,933) (147,540) 472,393
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,686,934 1,686,934 1,686,934
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,067,001 $ 1,067,001 $ 1,539,394 $ 472,393

36



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIRE AND EMERGENCY FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,129,000 $ 1,129,000 $ 1,111,473 $ (17,527)
Interest 1,000 1,000 5,783 4,783
TOTAL REVENUES 1,130,000 1,130,000 1,117,256 (12,744)
EXPENDITURES é
Current O
Public safety \
Contracted services 1,103,000 1,103,00 1,103,000 -
Other 1,000 1 958 42
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,104,000 00 1,103,958 42
EXCESS OF REVENUES &O
OVER EXPENDITURES 26,000 26,000 13,298 (12,702)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 402 122,762 (122,762)
Transfers out , 762 (122,762) - 122,762
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING )
SOURCES (USES) Q) - - -
rs
NET CHANGE IN FUND B&!‘{CE 26,000 26,000 13,298 (12,702)
Fund balance, beginning ofie?\- 432,913 432,913 432,913 -
Fund balance, end of y $ 458,913 $ 458913 $ 446,211 $ (12,702)

37



8¢

"PeIuasad aq [[1m e1ep Jo sieaf ua) ‘A[p1ewny ‘Apandadsold
31nq 3utaq sl ANPayYos SIYL, ‘6Tz feak [BIsy ur 1snay oyl Surpuny ueSaq pue pajests diysumoy 931 pue LT0g Iea4 [edsy ul pajuswalduil sem G/ gSyo)

%+0°Z82 %9458 %L6'8E" %80°8% %S6TT- %ST ¥~ %680 %L6E lotfed aakordwa-paianos jo aferuaosad

e se fiqen (39sse) gg4019u s, diysumaoy,

LBEE6  §  LBE'€6  §  SSE'S6  §  PIETEL §  ZLE00E §  LELOSE §  1SL'S6z $  959°46E § lfo1fed 2afo[dwa-patanoy

%000 %000 %¥LSTT %¥S18 %6T'TIT %L9'¥0T %9766 %90'96 Anqey 2340 [e02 jo aFeruasiad

e se uonisod 1au Arepanpy uefq

- N\

26£'€92  §  ¥85'997 §  (ZZULE) §  2ETE9  §  (e685E)  §  (G95%1) §  fzoz 3 08L& (eso'ss] s Amqer (13sse) gg40 39u s,diysumoy,
s &= $ 8I0°ELZ §  /88'BLZ §  E0L'95E §$  O0IL9ZE $  OVbO0SE ,\%mm $  09€ZZF § Teaf jo pua ‘uonisod Jau Lreranpy uerq

" s

- € - 8T0ELZ LBBBLT £0495€ 0TL'9ZE \& \ B0SE $$9'58¢ zeaf yo Surumidaq ‘uonised 10u Lrepnpy uerg
= = 8T0°ELT 698'S 9Tg'LL (c66'62] om.\..mﬂa.tm\ $0Z'sE 9TL9E uonsod 1au Axepnpy ueqd ur afueya 39
3 = - - (2L8) (o¥9) g (892) (cv8) sasuadxa sanensIUIWpY

= » (655°£) (655°2) = = N\ P4 - - syuawded Jyousg

7 = YEY'9 698°S £6E8L (gs€'62) a C9pEYE ZL6'SE 65S'LE (sso[) awesur JuaunsaauT 19N

& $ * § £YIPLT  § 6SS°L $ = $ » $ N/ $ = $ - $ suonnquiuod Jafordwy

uonrsod 1au Areanpy uerg

¢6E'€9Z  §  ¥8599Z §  968'SEZ §  GLOCFE $  0L8B0ZE €90'€ESE  §  6¥FTOF $  80L99% § Teak jo pua ‘Anniqer; 9940 [e10],
- Z6E'€9Z ¥85992Z 968'S€Z 6T0'ZFE SPT'ZIE €90'€SE 67 10V Jeaf jo Jujumdaq “Anpiqen 9340 (210,
Z6£'€92 Z6T°E (8a90¢g) £21'90T (60Z'12) \M\mewm_& 816'0% 98E'8Y (tv2'%€) Amqer 9340 revos ur afueya jay
Gss ) (6552) (655°2) (6552 | i -

- - suonnqriuod aadodwa jo
spunjax Jurpnpour ‘syuawifed 1yauag
saguet orqdesowap/a1uounsa jo 1ayg

¢ - - : i (s99'6£) (6v0z€) - (vzg'Le) suondwmnsse u1 safueys Jo 1933
= (sBe'eT) (z¥a'9¥) 892'94 N\ LEO'S STH'SH LT08T 6£8'0€ 22uaLadxa [emk pue paioadxd UIamMIaq SIUIIAYIQ
- ¥92'6 9.L2°0T ELETIp=—)  S9L'ET L68'6 LBYTT Y0EST 6LT9T 153133U]
1S6'0L2 §  TL8%T  §  LEFST  §  TE0SZ NS 05052 S 990°9T § S909T $ S909T §  S909T § 1502 aa1ALg
Amqen g3do el
LT0Z 8102 6102 020z 1202 7202 €202 202 5202

(dvAX TYISId HOVA 40 0£/9 40 SV QANIWYALIA THAM SLNNOWY)

(@QIAVTdSIA 39 TIIM SUVAA TVISIA NIL ATALVIWLLTN) SAVAA TVISIE ANIN LSV
SOLLYY QI.LVTZd ANV (LISSY) ALITIGVIT 99d0 LAN S.dIHSNMOL NI STONVHD 40 TINAIHIS
NV1d SLIJANAI LNANAOTdWI-LSOd YIHLO
ATTIOH 40 dIHSNMOL



6E

J\ ‘pajussald aq [[Im e1ep Jo s1eak ua) ‘Aj@rewny "Ajpandadsoad

g Suraq SI A[Npayds Sy "6T0Z IedA [BSY Ul IS} a1} mEmp daq pue pajestd diysumo], a3 pue £z Jeak [easy ur pajuswedur sem gz gsyo

%8'L8T %8°S %0°0 %0°0 ﬁvé

S5Z'S6 $ YIETET § ZLE'00E § LEL'OSE § /ﬂﬁmm $ 959°L6E  § ZPe'LIY  §
Cn

%00 %0°0 [1o14ed aako[dwa-palanod jo afejusalad se suonnquIue)

[1014ed aafojdwa-pataso)

(e68'997) $ €48z § - 5 = A'.\ - g - $ - $ (ss90%9) £auarayap UoNNqLIIUOY
TLTLL 6552 5 " " - - uonNLIIU0D PAaUIULIIOP A[[ELIeNII. SU1 0] UOHE[a Ul SUOTINGLIIU0T)
0SZ'L § zeete  § 0 - § - $ - $ - $ - $ UonNGLIuoD PIuLIlap A[[elenioy

6102 0202 1202 220z £20¢ 20z 5202

(4VAX TVISId HOVE 40 0€/9 40 SV QANINYALAA TIAM SINNOWY)
(QIAV1dSIA 39 TTIM SIVAX TVISIA NIL ATALVINLLTN) STLVA LNIWIINSYAN NIATS LSV
SNOILNAIILNOD dTHSNMOL 10 ITNAIHIS
NVId SLITANIE LNIWAOTdINI-LSOd YIHLO
ATTOH 40 dTHSNMO.L



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
LAST SEVEN MEASUREMENT DATES
(ULTIMATELY TEN FISCAL YEARS WILL BE DISPLAYED)

Annual
Money-Weighted
Rate of Return,

Net of
Year Ended Investment

June 30, Expense
2025 9.09%
2024 9.57% _ N
2023 7.01% () 3
2022 -8.78% \
2021 24,509, C-
2020 2. 36% §\
2019 3 gﬂ}

GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2017 and the Towns e?ated and began funding the trust in fiscal
year 2019. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultlmj\i'p‘}isn years of data will be presented.

((J\

&
Q°
4\3

3

6

40



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:
Alternative measurement method date: June 30, 2025

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Every-age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll

Remaining amortization period 20 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smooth market ‘kx

Investment rates of return 5.00% CD\

Salary rate increase 2.50% \

Discount rate 5.000% {%}

Normal retirement age Age 65 o,

Healthcare cost trend rate 5.80%, decreasing 0. % i\‘year 2 and 3 then decreasing 0.2%
each year until an %ﬁte’ rate of 4.10% is achieved.

Mortality tables Pub-2010 Puziiv& tirement Plans Mortality Tables, with
mortality i y)ment projected for ten years.

Changes in Assumptions /<\

There were no changes in assumptions for eacl§{;the reported plan years ended June 30 except for the

following: @

» 2025 - The discount rate increased feoin 3.875% to 5.00%. The bond yield rate increased from 3.50%
to 4.00%. The salary increase ch d from 3.00% to 2.50%. Health care cost trend rate increased from
4.70% to 5.80%, as a resulp of factors such as medical inflation, utilization of health care services, plan

design, and technologic provements.

X

» 2023 -The disco@%ﬁ"fnereased from 3.50% to 3.875%. The bond yield rate increased from 3.00%
to 3.50%. T

» 2022 -The dis&t rate increased from 2.938% to 3.50%. The bond yield rate increased from 2.25%
to 3.00%. The salary rate increase changed from 2.00% to 3.00%.

> 2021 - Mortality tables are based on Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables, with mortality
improvement projected for 10 years. The prior year Life expectancies were based on mortality tables
from the National Vital Statistics Report. The 2012 United States Life Tables for Males and for Females
were used. The discount rate decreased from 5.000% to 2.983%. The salary rate increase was changed

from 3.50% to 2.00%.

Changes in Benefits

There were no changes of benefit terms for each of the reported plan years ended June 30.

41



O%

S
Q\
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY IN@K‘IATION
e
C)«
&
Q)B
/%0
<<&

42



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2025

Special Revenue Capital Project

Road
Building Improvement
Department Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 123,050 $ 168,926 % 291,976
Accounts receivable 3,081 - 3,081
TOTAL ASSETS $ 126,131 $ 168,926 $ 295,057
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES §
LIABILITIES N
Account payable $ 14803 § c’:) - $ 14,803
N
FUND BALANCES {2;5
Restricted Qa-»
Public safety 111,36 - 111,328
Assigned & ~
Capital projects y. - 168,926 168,926
¢ N\
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 11,328 168,926 280,254

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND BALANCES 0% 126,131 $ 168,926 $ 295,057
A r

43



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Special Revenue Capital Project

Road
Building Improvement
Department Fund Total
REVENUES
Licenses and permits $ 176,046 $ - 176,046
Investment income 5,080 7,041 12,121
TOTAL REVENUES 181,126 7,041 188,167
oy
EXPENDITURES R\
Current ,k@f ) "
Public safety 207,356 _ \\ 207,356
)
‘/\ /7 #
EXCESS OF REVENUES (OVER) VoY
UNDER EXPENDITURES (26,230) 7,041 (19,189)
£ U
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ¢ N
Transfers in % - 100,000 100,000
, L)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5’ (26,230) 107,041 80,811
o
Fund balances, beginning of year . "\x;?,»"') 137,558 61,885 199,443
C~"
Fund balances, end of year * $ 111,328 $ 168,926 280,254
f” “\',.
£y
=
'<\ '\",} %

44



2425 E. Grand River Ave,,
Suite 1, Lansing, M1 48912

#~Maner sy,
C

OSte I'lSElI'l © 517.323.6346

August 6, 2025

Township of Holly
102 Civic Dr
Holly, MI 48442

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Township of Holly for the year(s)
ended June 30, 2025, 2026, and 2027.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of
Township of Holly as of and for the year(s) ended June 30, 2025, 2026, and 2027. Accounting standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required supplementary
information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Township of Holly's
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of
our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Township of Holly’s RSIinaccordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited procedures will consist of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient appropriate
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by GAAP and will be
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

Management's discussion and analysis

Budgetary comparison schedules

Required supplementary pension schedules

Required supplementary other post-employment benefit schedules

oW

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Township
of Holly’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing

“procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in
areport combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements.

1. Combining fiduciary funds financial statements



The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
GAAP and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individuaily or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records and other
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions, As part of an audit in accordance with
GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to ebtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from
(1) errvors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or
governmental regulations that are attributable to the government orto acts by management or employees acting
on behalf of the government.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements,
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level
of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend
to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for
areasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets
and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions. We may also
request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.



Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.
Audit Procedures - Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal
contral, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures respounsive to those risks and obtain evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed
to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will
express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged
with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA

professional standards.

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements arve free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Township of Holly’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an
opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including monitoring
ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America with the oversight of those charged with governance.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related
information available to us; for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of whether there are any conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government's ability to continue as a
going concern for the 12 months after the financial statements date or shortly thereafter (for example, within an
additional three months if currently known). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party
relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole.



You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud,
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management,
(2} employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees,
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring
that the government complies with applicable laws and regulations.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). You agree to include our report on the
supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of
the supplementary information that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements
readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary
information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written
representation letter that (1} you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in
accordance with GAAP; (2) you helieve the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from
those used in the prior period (or, ifthey have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed
to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the
supplementary information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from
senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those
services; and accept responsibility for them.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of Township of Holly in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by
you,

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are
limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve
the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management
responsihilities,

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statement preparation services and any
other nonattest services we provide; oversee the services hy designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services;
and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we
request and will locate any docurments selected by us for testing,



We will provide copies of our reports; however, management is responsible for distribution of the reports and
the financial statements, Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Maner Costerisan and constitutes confidential
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to an oversight agency or its designee, a
federal agency providing direct orindirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for the purposes
ofa quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify
you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision
of Maner Costerisan personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit
documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend or decide to distribute the copies or
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional period requested by the oversight agency. If we are aware that a federal
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Aaron M, Stevens, CPA is the engagement pariner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

The fees for audit services will be as follows:

Year Ended Financial
[une 30, Audit F-65
2025 5 19,000 $ 1,000
2026 19,700 1,000
2027 20,400 1,000

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Past due
amounts are subject to a service fee of 1.5% per month. In accordance with firm policies, work may be
suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, you will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. Third-party
confirmation providers for certain financial institutions may invoice us for responding to confirmation requests
and we will pass those costs through to you.

Because we are extremely interested in continuing to serve Township of Holly and the fact that our audit team
members have a great deal of experience working with similar entities, we are proposing a discount to owr audit
cost estimate. The price schedule detailed above is a firm price assuming Township of Holly records are in
reasonable condition and that we are provided reasonable staff assistance. If our team members spend more
hours than the projected hours detailed above that are not due to unusual circumstances (i.e,, unrecorded
accruals, unbalanced records, improperly recorded activities, the state of the records being significantly
different than what was stated, inadequate staff assistance, significant changes in auditing standards, etc.} then
we will not bill for any amounts over the audit cost estimate. During the audit, we will spend approximately
20% more in fees than what is projected above, however, we will not bill you for that additional time, unless it
exceeds the 20% amount which would be caused by circumstances such as those items listed above.



Our proposal is to provide Township of Holly with auditing services, rather than accounting services. The cost
schedule detailed on the previous page assumes that extensive journal entries to adjust the accounting records
(le., bookkeeping) will not be required as part of the audit process. If auditor-proposed journal entries are
required in order for the financial statements to be fairly presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, we propose a per entry fee of $200.

If additional procedures are necessary to assist with implementation or continuation of accounting standards
(such as GASR Statement Nos. 68, 75, 87, 96, 101 or any other accounting standard impacting the financial
statements of the Township of Holly), such assistance is considered outside the scope of the audit and our fees
will be based on the services rendered at our standard hourly rates. Creation of required schedules will be the
responsibility of the Township of Holly but if the Township of Holly needs assistance to prepare any of the
necessary supporting schedules, we will assist in this and we will perform these services at our standard hourly
rates.

In any year that Township of Holly would like us to prepare any additional State or other required forms, we will
bill the Township of Holly at an hourly rate of $300.

Included as part of this agreement, refer to Addendum A and Addendum B,
Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Township of Holly's financial statements. Our
report will be addressed to management and those charged with governance of Township of Holly.
Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results
of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions,
add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the
reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or
have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this
engagement.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Township of Holly and believe this letter aceurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,



RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Township of Holly.

By:

Title:

Date:

To: Maner Costerisan

After considering the gualifications of the accounting personnel of Township of Holly we believe they have the
gualifications and abilities to generate financial statements, including the required footnotes, in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. However, for convenience and other issues, we may contract with
you to prepare our financial statements.

Signature:

Title:

Date:




ADDENDUM A: MANER COSTERISAN PC'S TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Overview

This addendum to the engagement letter describes our standard terms and conditions (“Terms and Conditions”)
related to our provision of services to you. This addendum, and the accompanying engagement letter, comprise
your agreement with us ("Agreement”). If there is any inconsistency between the engagement letter and this
Terms and Conditions Addendum, the engagement letter will prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.

For the purposes of this Terms and Conditions Addendum, any reference to “firm,” “we,” “us,” or “ouwr” is a
reference to Maner Costerisan, and any reference to “you,” or "your" is a reference to the party or parties that
have engaged us to provide services.

Billing and Payment Terms

We will bill you for our professional fees as noted above. Payment is due within 30 days of the date on the billing
statement. If payment is not received by the due date, you will be assessed interest charges of 1.5% per month
on the unpaid balance. You have 30 days from the invoice date to review the invoice and to communicate to us,
in writing, any disagreement with the charges, after which you waive the right to contest the invoice.

We reserve the right to suspend or terminate our work for non-payment of fees. In the event that work is
discontinued, either temporarily or bermanently, as a result of delinquent payment, we shall not be liable for
any damages you may incur as a result of the work stoppage.

Termination and Withdrawal

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, and we reserve the right to withdraw from the
engagement without completing services for any reason, including, but not limited to, non-payment of fees, your
failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, if there is disagreement with our recommendations, or
disclosures to be made. In addition, we reserve the right to terminate the relationship if applicable professional
standards require our withdrawal for any other reason. If our work is suspended or terminated, you agree that
we will not be responsible for your failure to meet governmental and other deadlines, or for any liability,
including but not limited to, penalties or interest that may be assessed against you resulting from your failure to
meet such deadlines,

If this Agreement is terminated before services are completed, you agree to compensate us for the services
performed and expenses incurred through the effective date of termination.

Proprietary Information

You acknowledge that proprietary information, documents, materials, management techniques and other
intellectual property are a material source of the services we perform and were developed prior to our association
with you. Any new forms, software, documents, or intellectual property we develop during this engagement for
your use shall belong to us, and you shall have the limited right to use them solely within your business. All reports,
templates, manuals, forms, checklists, questionnaires, letters, agreements, and other documents which we make
available to you are confidential and proprietary to us. Neither you, nor any of your agents, will copy, electronically
store, reproduce, or make available to anyone other than your personnel, any such documents. This provision will
apply to all materials whether in digital, “hard copy” format or other medium,

Conflicts of Interest
Ifwe, in our sole discretion, believe a conflict of interest has arisen affecting our ability to deliver services to you

in accordance with either the ethical standards of our firm or the ethical standards of our profession, we may be
required to suspend or terminate our services without issuing our work product,



Client Portals

We will utilize Suralink, a collaborative, virtual workspace in a protected, online environment. Suralink permits
real-time collaboration across geographic boundaries and time zones and allows Maner Costerisan and you to
share data, engagement information, knowledge, and deliverables in a protected environment. In order to use
Suralink, you may be required by the provider of Suralink to execute a client portal agreement and agree to be
bound by the terms, conditions, and limitations of such agreement. You agree that we have no responsibility for
the activities of Suralink and agree to indemnify and hold us harmless with respect to any and all claims arising

from your misuse of Suralink.

Maner Costerisan is not a host for any of your information. You are responsible for maintaining your own copy
of this information. We do not provide back-up services for any of your data or records, including information
we provide to you. Portals are utilized solely as a method of transferring data and are not intended for the
storage of your information. Information on a portal may be deleted by Maner Costerisan.

If you decide to transmit your confidential information to us in a manner other than a secure portal, you accept
responsibility for any and all unauthorized access to your confidential information. If you request that we
transmit confidential information to you in a manner other than a secure portal, you agree that we are not
responsible for any liability, including but not limited to, (a) any loss or damage of any nature, whether direct or
indirect, that may arise as a result of our sending confidential information in a manner other than a secure portal,
and (b) any damages arising as a result of any virus heing passed on or with, or arising from any alteration of,
any email message.

Third-Party Service Providers or Subcontractors

We may use a third-party service provider to assist us where necessary to help provide professional services to
you or support the needs of our firm. This may include provision of your confidential information to the third-
party service provider. We require our third-party service providers to have established procedures and
controls designed to protect client confidentiality and maintain data security. As the paid provider of
professional services, our firm remains responsible for exercising reasonable care in providing such services,
and our work product will be subjected to our firm's customary quality control procedures.

By accepting the terms and conditions of our engagement, you consent to the disclosure of your confidential
information to third-party service providers, if such disclosure is necessary to deliver professional services to
you or provide support services to our firm. In certain circumstances, we may require a separate written consent
from you before your information is transmitted to a third party.

Records Management

Record Retention and Ownership

We do not accept originat records and documents. Electronic versions of original records and documents should
be provided to us through the secure portal noted above. These copies of your records and documents are solely
for our documentation purposes and are not a substitute for your own records and do not mitigate your record
retention obligations under any applicable laws or regulations. You are responsible for maintaining complete
and accurate books and records, which may include financial statements, schedules, and other deliverables
provided to you by us. If we provide deliverables or other records to you via an information portal, you must
download this information within 60 days (unless otherwise stated). Professional standards preclude us from
being the sole repository of your original data, records, or infoermation.

Workpapers and other documents created by us are our property and will remain in our control. Copies are not
to be distributed without your written request and our prior written consent. Our workpapers will be
maintained by us in accordance with our firm’s record retention policy and any applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. A copy of our record retention policy is available upon request,



Our firm destroys workpaper files after a period of eight years. Catastrophic events or physical deterioration
may result in damage to or destruction of our firm’s records, causing the records to be unavailable before the
expiration of the retention period, as stated in our record retention policy.

Working Paper Access Requests by Regulators and Others

State, federal, and foreign regulators may request access to or copies of certain workpapers pursuant to
applicable legal or regulatory requirements. Requests also may arise with respect to peer review, an ethics
investigation, the sale of your organization, or the sale of our accounting practice. If requested, access to such
workpapers will be provided under the supervision of firm personnel. Regulators may request copies of selected
workpapers to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental
agencies.

If we receive a request for copies of selected workpapers, provided that we are not prohibited from doing so by
applicable laws or regulations, we agree to inform you of such request as soon as practicable. You may, within
the time permitted for our firm to respond to any request, initiate such legal action as you deem appropriate, at
your sole expense, to attempt to limit the disclosure of information. If you take no action within the time
permitted for us to respond, or if your action does not result in a judicial order protecting us from supplying
requested information, we may construe your inaction or failure as consent to comply with the request.

If we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, you agree to reimburse us for our
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our legal counsel, incurred in responding to
such requests.

Summons or Subpoenas

All information you provide to us in connection with this engagement will be maintained by us on a strictly
confidential basis.

If we receive a summons or subpoena which our legal counsel determines requires us to produce documents
from this engagement or testify about this engagement, provided that we are not prohibited from doing so hy
applicable laws or regulations, we agree to inform you of such summons or subpoena as soon as practicable. You
may, within the time permitted for our firm to respond to any request, initiate such legal action as you deem
appropriate, at your sole expense, to attempt to limit discovery. If you take no action within the time permitted
for us to respond, or if your action does not result in a judicial order protecting us from supplying requested
information, we may construe your inaction or failure as consent to camply with the request,

If we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, you agree to reimburse us for our
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our legal counsel, incurred in responding to
such requests.

Confidentiality

In providing services to you, we may require information that is considered confidential and may include
Personally Identifiable Information (P11}, i.e., information that can be used to distinguish or trace an individual’s
identity such as address, bank account and social security information. We treat all client information, including
Pll, as confidential and have a duty to do so based on the standards promulgated by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as applicable laws and regulations. You agree to only provide us with
information, including Pli, that is necessary for us to provide services to you in accordance with the Agreement,

10



Referrals

In the course of providing services to you, you may request referrals to products or professionals such as
attorneys, brokers, or investment advisors. We may identify professional(s] or product(s) for your
consideration. However, you are responsible for evaluating, selecting, and retaining any professional or product
and determining if the professional or product meets your needs. You agree that we will not oversee the
activities of and have no responsibility for the work product of any professional or the suitability of any product
we refer to you or that you separately retain. Further, we are not responsible for any services we perform that
fail to meet the intended outcomes as a result of relying on the services of other professionals or products you

may retain.
Limitations on Oral and Email Communications

We may discuss with you our views regarding the treatment of certain items or decisions you may encounter,
We may also provide you with information in an email. Any advice or information delivered orally or in an email
(rather than through a memorandum delivered as an email attachment) will be based upon limited research and
a limited discussion and analysis of the underlying facts. Additional research or a more complete review of the
facts may affect our analysis and conclusions.

Due to these limitations and the related risks, it may or may not be appropriate to proceed with a decision solely
on the basis of any oral or email communication from us. You accept all responsibility, except to the extent
caused by our gross negligence or willful misconduct, for any liability, including but not limited to additional tax,
penalties or interest resulting from your decision (i) not to have us perform the research and analysis necessary
to reach a more definitive conclusion and (i) to instead rely on an eral or email communication. The limitation
in this paragraph will not apply to an item of written advice thatis a deliverable of a separate engagement. [f you
wish to engage us to provide formal advice on a matter on which we have communicated orally or by email, we
will confirm this service in a separate agreement.

Disclaimer of Legal and Investment Advice

Our services under this Agreement do not constitute investment advice. Our services under this Agreement do
not constitute legal advice.

Electronic Data Communication and Storage

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send data over the Internet, temporarily store electronic
data via computer software applications hosted remotely on the Internet, or utilize cloud-based storage. Your
confidential electronic data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. In using these data
communication and storage methods, our firm employs measures designed to maintain data security. We use
reasonable efforts to keep such communications and electronic data secure in accordance with our obligations
under applicable laws, regulations, and professional standards.

You recognize and accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any
communications or electronic data once it has been transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access
while stored, notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us. You consent to our use of these
electronic devices and applications during this engagement.

Marketing and Educational Communications

Newsletters, updates, explanations of technical developments or similar colmmunications to you we may
periodically send to you are strictly for marketing or general educational purposes and should not be construed
as professional advice on which you may rely. These communications, by themselves, do not create a contractual
relationship between us and you, a binding obligation for us to provide services to you, nor a requirement on

our part to monitor issues for you,

11



Mediation

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan. If a dispute arises out of the engagement
described herein and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiations, the parties agree first to try in good
faith to settle the dispute by mediation using an agreed upon mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful and either
party resorts to litigation, the claims must be asserted in court within one year of the date of the service at issue
and be brought in the Ingham County Court which will have exclusive jurisdiction over the dispute,

The mediation will be treated as a settlement discussion and, therefore, all discussions during the mediation will
be confidential. The mediator may not testify for either party in any later proceeding related to the dispute. No
recording or transcript shall be made of the mediation proceedings. The costs of any mediation proceedings
shall be shared equally by all parties. Any costs of legal representation shall be borne by the hiring party.

This provision shall not apply to any dispute related to our billing and /or invoices.
Limitation of Liability

You agree that our maximum liability to you for any negligent errors or omissions committed by us in the
performance of the engagement will be limited to the amount of our fees for this engagement, except to the
extent determined to result from our gross negligence or willful misconduct.

Limitation of Damages

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this agreement, Maner Costerisan shall not be liable for any lost
profits, indirect, special, incidental, punitive, consequential, or similar damages, to the extent such damages may
be lawfully limited or excluded, of any nature even if we have been advised by you of the possibility of such
damages.

Indemnification of Maner Costerisan PC

Unless otherwise stated in the Agreement, you agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Maner Costerisan
and any of its partners, principals, shareholders, officers, directors, members, employees, agents or assigns with
respect to any and all claims made by third parties arising from this engagenent, regardless of the nature of the
claim, and including the negligence of any party, excepting claims arising from the gross negligence or
intentional acts of Maner Costerisan.

Designation of Venue and Jurisdiction

In the event of a dispute, the courts of the state of Michigan shall have jurisdiction, and alt disputes will he
submitted to the state of Michigan, which is the proper and most convenient venue for resolution. We also agree
that the law of the state of Michigan shall govern all such disputes.

Timing for Disputes

You agree that any claim arising out of this Agreement shall be commenced within 12 months after performance
of our service, regardless of any longer period of time for commencing such claim as may be set by law. A claim

is understood to be a demand for money or services, the service of a suit, or the institution of arbitration
proceedings against Maner Costerisan.

12



Insurance

Maner Costerisan shall, during the term of the engagement and for three years after termination of same by
either you or us, maintain in full force and effect, accountants professionat liahility and cyber liability insurance
coverage from an insurer or insurers licensed to conduct business in the state of Michigan. Premiums for said
insurance policy shall be paid by Maner Costerisan.

Upon your written request, Maner Costerisan shall furnish certificates of insurance for the required insurance
coverage. Such certificate of insurance shall indicate the minimum limits of liability per claim and in the
aggregate, as required by you.

Independent Contractor

When providing services to your company, we will be functioning as an independent contractor and in no event
will we or any of our employees be an officer of you, nor will our relationship be that of joint venturers, partners,
emplayer and employee, principal and agent, or any similar relationship giving rise to a fiduciary duty to you.

Our obligations under this Agreement are solely obligations of Maner Costerisan, and no partner, principal,
employee, or agent of Maner Costerisan shall be subjected to any personal liability whatsoever to you or any

person or entity.
Severability

If any portion of this Agreement is deemed invalid or unenforceable, said finding shall not operate to invalidate
the remainder of the terms set forth in this Agreement.

Survivability

The following sections of this Terms and Conditions Addendum shall survive termination of the Agreement;
Limitation of Liability, Limitation of Damages, Indemnification, and Statute of Limitations.

Assignment

All parties acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the parties’ successors and assigns, subject to applicable laws and regulations.

Force Mujeure

Neither party shall be held liable for any delays resulting from circumstances or causes beyond our reasonable
control, including, without limitation, fire or other casualty, act of God, strike or labor dispute, war or other
violence, epidemics or pandemics as defined by The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, or any law,
order or requirement of any governmental agency or authority. However, no Force Majeure event shall excuse
you of any obligation to pay any outstanding invoice or fee or from any indemnification obligation under this

Agreement.
Electronic Signatures and Counterparts

Each party hereto agrees that any electronic signature is intended to authenticate a written signature, shall be
valid, and shall have the same force and effect as a manual signature. For purposes hereof, “electronic signature”
includes, but is not limited to, a scanned copy of a manual signature, an electronic copy of a manual signature
affixed to a document, a signature incorporated into a document utilizing touchscreen capabilities, or a digital
signature. Documents may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered an
original instrument, but all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement.

13



Other

During the term of this engagement and for a period of one year thereafter, neither party shall directly or
indirectly, solicit for employment or for engagement as an independent contractor, or encourage leaving their
employment or engagement, any employee or independent contractor of the other party. For the avoidance of
doubt, general advertisements for employment and responses thereto, shall not be deemed a violation of the
paragraph. The parties agree that any breach of this paragraph would damage the other party in an amount
difficult to ascertain with certainty, and that in the event that either party breaches this provision resulting in
the other party losing the services of an employee or independent contractor for any period of time, the
breaching party shall pay to the other party an amount equal to the annual rate of compensation (paid by the
non-breaching party for the immedijate prior calendar year) of the applicable employee or independent
contractor.

Our most recent external peer review report accompanies this letter.

If reproduction or publication of financial statements audited by us, or any portion thereof, is intended, it is our
policy that any master of printer’s proofs be submitted to us for review prior to publication.

We will continue to perform our services under the arrangements discussed above from year to year unless for
some reason you or we find that some change is necessary. However, the performance of each audit is a separate
and severable engagement. Each separate engagement shall be deemed complete and Maner Costerisan will not
have a continuing responsibility to perform additional services with respect to that completed engagement
when we present to you the final audit report that relates to any given year.

Our audit report on the financial statements to be issued pursuant to this engagement is for your use, Ifitis your
primary intent that our report will benefit or influence a third-party user, we must be informed prior to the
beginning of the annual audit engagement,

Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including this Terms and Conditions Addendum and any other attachments, encompass the
entire agreement of the parties and supersedes all previous understandings and agreements between the
parties, whether oral or written. Any modification to the terms of this Agreement must be made in writing and
signed by both parties. This Agreement has been entered into solely between you and Maner Costerisan, and no
third-party beneficiaries are created hereby.

14



ADDENDUM B: NON-ATTEST SERVICES

As part of the audit engagement, you have requested oux assistance with the following services. Government
Auditing Standards considers these services as “hon-attest” or "“non-audit” services. Managementis required to
review, approve, and accept responsibility for any non-audit services we may perform.

»

Preparation of the financial statements, including the related notes, required and additional
supplementary information.

Calculation of the provision for depreciation, if applicable.

Assistance with the preparation and submission of audit financial information required by law or
regulations.

Assistance with, or the preparation of, year-end adjusting journal entries and workpapers.
Access to a secure website to exchange information electronically.

Assistance with the preparation of other financial reporting required by law or regulation (i.e, Forms F-
65, Act 51, 5572, and Qualifying Statement}.

15



IRPBcra

A e L. 43 e
A, CENMLLTY OT Mew I‘[,. Aac:

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control
July 31, 2023

To the Principals of Maner Costerisan PC
and the National Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Maner Costerisan PC
(the firm) in effect for the year ended March 31, 2023. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a system review as
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported on in conformity with applicable
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of applicable professional

engagements deemed as not performed or reported on in conformity with the requirements of applicable
professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the firm's system of quality
control based on our review.

Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards,
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; and audits of employee benefit plans.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

Opinion
effect for the year ended March 31, 2023, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all

material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Maner Costerisan PC has
received a peer review rating of pass.

— —_— |
» I , ] —
+‘\ m_L"_LLS e, cf:?ﬁm. L

Reilly, Penner & Benton LLP

Reilly, Penner & Benton LLP
1233 N. Mayfair Road Suite #302 Milwaukee, WI 53226-3255 - 414-271-7800

www.rpb.biz



George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin S. Winchester, Clerk
Jeanifer Ryan, Treasurer
Derek Burton, Trustee

Ryan Matson, Trustee
Michaet McCanney

A Richard Kinnamon

Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331
Fax: 248-634-5482

Holly, M1 484
(248) 634-9331

RESOLUTION 2025-18:
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to mect application
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other
Community Planning and Development; and

WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG — Eligible projects from participating
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Holly has duly advertised and held a public hearing on November
19, 2025 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of 2026
Program Year Community Development Block Grant Funds; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Holly found that the following projects, i the approximate amount
of $154,639.00, meet the federal objectives of the CDBG program and are prioritized by the

community as high priority need.
Account #172160-732185: 05D Youth Services $ 4,639.00

037 Other Public Improvements Not Listed in 03A-03T (Removal of Architectural Bairiers)
$ 50,000.00

Account #132290-730898: 14A Rehabilitation: Single Unit Residential (Minor and Mobile
Home Repair Program) § 50,000.00 .

Account #172170-731280: 16B Non-Residential Historic Preservation $ 50,000.00

THEREFORE, BE I'T RESOLVED, that the Holly Township Board of Trustees hereby approves
the 2026 Program year CDBG Application and Subrecipient Agreement and authorizes the
application to be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in the Oakland County’s Action Plan
to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Holly Township Board of Trustees hereby authorizes
the Holly Township Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts which result from

this application to Oakland County.

ADOPTED by the Holly Township Beard of Trustees this 19% day of November 2025.

HOLLY TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION 2025-18 Page 1 of 2




HT

Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331
Fax: 248-634-5482

Holly Township
182 Civic Drive
Holly, MI 48442
(248) 634-9331

Motion by:

Supported by:

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Certification

George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
lennifer Ryan, Treasurer
Drerek Burion, Trustee

Ryan Matson, Trustee
Michael McCanney

Richard Kinnamon

! The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Holly, Oakland County, Michigan,
hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 2025-18 duly adopted by the
Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 20" day of November, 2024at which meeting a guorum was
present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the records in my office; (3) the meeting was
conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Aect (Act
No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeling were kept and will be or have

been made available as required thereby,

Karin S, Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan

HOLLY TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION 2025-18

Page2of2



Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301
Fax: 248-634-5482

George A. Kuliis, Supervisor
Karin . Winchester, Clerk
Jennifer Ryan, Treasurer
Derck Burton, Trustee
Ryan Matson, Trustee

Holly To hi]:_i Michael McCanne:
S OWnsx y. Trustee
ngl%y?ﬁlffsil;eﬂ Richard Kinnamon, Trustee

(248) 634-9331

RESOLUTION 2025-19

2026 NORTH OAKLAND COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY BUDGET

BE IT RESOLVED that the Holly Township Board of Trustees hereby approves the 2026 North
Oakland County Fire Authority Budget by Cost Center as follows:

Revenues
401 - Holly Township Contribution $ 1,243,327.00
402 - Rose Township Contribution £ 1,243,327.00
403 - Training / Education Revenues $ 6,000.00
404 - Fire Cost Recovery $ 1,000.00
405 - Grant Receipts $ -
405.5 - SAFER Grant Receipts
406 - Medical Cost Recovery $ 470,000.00
410 - Sales-Small Ttems $ -
412 - Sales-Capital Items $ -
413 - Review and Inspection Services $ 30,000.00
414 - Interest Eamned $ 14,000.00
416 - Donations $ 100.00
419 - Insurance Reimbursement
419.1 - Wages Reimbursement $ 1,000.00
Total Revenues § 3,008,754.00
Expenditures
Insurance
Total - Insurance 8 98,500.00
Personnel |
Total - Personnel  $ 2,274,353.20
Supplies
Total - Supplies _§ 45,500.00
Contracted Services
Total - Contracted Services $ 147,039.00
Operating
Total - Operating Expenses _ § 418,361.80

Holly Township Resolution 2025-19

Page 1 of 2




HT

Office of the Clerk

248-634-9331 ext. 301

Fax: 248-634-5482
Holly Township
102 Civic Drive
Holly, M1 48449
({248) 634-90331

Purchases
Total - Purchases § 25,000.00
Total Al Expenditures § 3,008,754.00
Difference $

George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
Jennifer Ryan, Treasurer
Derek Burion, Trustee
Ryan Matson, Trustee
Michaet McCanney, Trustee
Richard Kinnamon, Trustee

ADOPTED by the Holly Township Board of Trustees this 19 day of November, 2025

Motion made by and supported by

Upon roll call vote, the following voted:
Ayes:

Nays:

Absent;

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

STATE OF MICHIGAN }
) ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

Clerk's Certificate

to adopt the forgoing resolution.

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Holly, Oakland County,

Michigan, hereby certifies that (1} the Joregoing is a true and complete copy
the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 19" day of November, 2025, at w
was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the recor
meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant to and in full co
Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minut

kept and will be or have been made available as required thereby.

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan

of a resolution duly adopted by
hich meeting a quorum
ds in my office; (3) the
mpliance with the Open
es of such meeting were

Holly Township Resolution 2025-19

Page 2 0of 2



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
CODE OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
CHAPTER Il TOWNSHIP BOARD, ARTICLE IIT OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES,
DIVISION 2 BENEFITS, SECTION 2-83 (a) BENEFITS.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE HOLLY TOWNSHIP CODE OF ORDINANCES,
CHAPTER T TOWNSHIP BOARD, ARTICLE III OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES,
DIVISION 2 BENEFITS, SECTION 2-83 (a) BENEFITS.
THE TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY ORDAINS:

ARTICLE 1. AMENDMENT

The following sections and subsections of Chapter 11 Township Board, Article III Officers and
Employees, Division 2 Benefits, Section 2-83 (a) Benefits. is hereby amended as set forth. The
remaining section in Chapter II of the Code of Ordinances are otherwise unaffected by this

amendment and shall remain in full force and effect.

Sec. 2-83. - Insurance.

(a) Generally. Pursnant to Public Act No. 77 of 1989 (MCL 41.16 et seq.), the township
board is hereby authorized to make arrangements with a prepayment plan authorized to
transact business within the state, to insure and cover township elected or appointed
officers and employees or any class of elected or appointed officers and employees under
the policies of group insurance or prepayment plan contracts, or both, covering life,
accident, disability, health, hospitalization, dental, medical and surgical service
insurance, including hospitalization, and medical and surgical service and expense for
dependents of the officers and employees.

ARTICLE 2 - SEVERABILITY

If any portion, subsection, sentence, clause, provision, or requirement of this section shall be
deemed invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed
a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions thereof which shall remain in full force and effect. It is the express intent of
this ordinance that the next most valid and enforceable but restrictive provision be substituted in
its place in order to effect the intent of this Section.

ARTICLE 3 -REPEALER

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed only
to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

ARTICLE 4 - SAVINGS CLAUSE




Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any court
or any liability incutred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or
Ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost,
impaired, or affected by this Ordinance.

ARTICLE S - EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately following publication in the manner prescribed by
law,

ARTICLE 6 - ADOPTION

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Township of Holly held on November 19, 2025
adoption of the foregoing ordinance was moved by and supported by . This
ordinance is hereby declared adopted and ordered to be given publication in a manner prescribed
by law.

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

CERTIFICATION

1, duly elected clerk of the Township of Holly, County of Oakland, and State of Michigan, do hereby certify that the
Joregoing is a true copy of the Amendment to the Holly Township Code of Ordinances Chapter 11 Township Board,
Article 1l Officers and Employees, Division 2 Benefits, Section 2-83 (a) Benefits. adopted by the Township Board of
Trustees of the Township of Holly at the regular meeting held on the 19" of November 2025 at which a quorum was
present,

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan

Attest:

George A. Kullis

Holly Township Supervisor

Oakland County, Michigan

Holly Township Code of Ordinance Amendment Chapter Il Township Board, Articte 11 Officers and Employees, Division 2 Benefits, Section 2-

83 (a) Benefits,
Published:
Effective;

Page 2 of 2



e

HorLLy TOWNSHIP §

“UJp NORTH IN Oaxr.AND COUNTY”

TO: Holly Township Boatd Members

FROM: Jenn Ryan

Holly Township Treasurer

248-634-9331

treasurer(@hollytownship.org

SUBJECT:

DATE: November 19, 2025

Short-term and Long-term Disability Insutance

102 Civic DrRIVE
Horrx, MI 48442
P: 248.634.9331
F: 248.634.5482

worww. Hor Ly ToWNSHIP?, ORG

Cuttently, Holly Township does not provide shost-term or long-term disability insurance as
a benefit for it’s employees. In coordination with the Supetvisor and Treasurer, the Clesk
reached out to the Township benefits coordinator to obtain quotes for ST and LT disability.

Below is information on the quotes received. If the Township were to add ST and/or LT
disability to the employee benefits packages, an ordinance amendment would is required.

The Township uses Security First Benefits Corporation (SFBC) Micah Widder Group to bid

out its employee benefits, including medical, dental, vision, and life insurance. Micah
teceived four quotes for ST disability and three quotes for LT disability.

Short-term Disability Insurance MetLife Lincoln Principal Kapsas City
Benefit Percentage 60.00% 66.67% 60.00% 60.00%
Max Weekly Benefit $1,000 $1,250 $1,250 $1,500
Monthly Premium Rates per $10 $0.421 $0.423 | $0.34-31.11 | $0.38-30.89
Hstimated Annual Cost $2,503 $2,816 $3,037 $3,571

The ST disability is paid as a percentage of the employee’s wages. Based on the percentages
in the quotes, no current employee would hit the max weelkly benefit. The rates for Principal

and Kansas City ate based on the age of the employee, so I've given them in a range.



Long-term Disability Insurance Lincoln (1) | Lincoln (2} Piincipal Kansas City
Benefit Percentage 60.00% 66.67% 60.00% 60.00%
Max Monthly Benefit $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000
Monthly Premium Rates per $10 %0.413 $0.542 ¢ $0.11-81.62 | $0.25-81.33
HEstimated Annual Cost $1,787 $2,345 $3,597 $3,944

The LT disability is paid as a percentage of the employee’s wages. Based on the percentages

in the quotes, no curtent employee would hit the max monthly benefit. The rates for

Principal and Kansas City are based on the age of the employee, so I've given them in a
tange. Lincoln provided two options, at 60% ot 66.67%. MetLife declined to provide a bid

for L'T disability.

Based on a review of the quotes with Micah, the administrative team requested updated

information from Lincoln. This updated quote removes the elected staff from the ST

disability quote. Micah has also reached out to Lincoln for a quote on life insurance, as it

includes a discount on the rates and would reduce the administrative burden. The Township

currently has life insurance through Principal Life at $1044.00 per year.

Lincoln Ouriginal Updated
ST Disability

Rate %0.423 £0.384
Annual Cost $2,816 $1,055
LT Disability

Rate for 60% £0.413 $0.400
Annual Cost 81,787 $1,731
Rate for 66.7% $0.542 20.526
Annual Cost £2,345 $2,276
Life Insurance

Rate £0.829 $0.283
Annual Cost $1,313 $437
Total Annual Cost $5,499

The Township administrative team tecommends adding ST and LT disability to its employee
benefits through Lincoln National Cotporation, and moving the life insurance coverage to

Lincoln to take advantage of the discounts.




DRAFT
Revised 11-13-20256

II.

11T,

IV.

Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

Purpose and Objective. Holly Township’s public facilities include community
rooms in government buildings. The intent of this Policy is to establish uniform
content-neutral time, place and manner regulations and procedures for the
usage of rooms in Township buildings; to identify rooms available for usage for
non-Township events; to provide sufficient forums for gathering and
expression of speech; and, to ensure the efficient uninterrupted administration
of the Township government and use of Township buildings and their
premises. The approval of any non-Township activity under this Policy is not
to be construed as, and is not, an endorsement of any non-Township event,
User or group, or of any opinions or viewpoints expressed by any non-Township
User, group, or event attendees.

Applicability. The following rooms are available for private use under this
Policy (the “Rooms”): the front room of 4092 Grange Hall Road, Holly
Township. Any rooms in any building that are not listed in this section are not
available for private use. [list, if more than one]

Permissible Users. Rooms may be used by registered non-profit organizations
that provide a benefit to Holly Township.

Prohibited Uses. Rooms may not be used in a manner that would constitute an
in-kind contribution to any type of political campaign or event, or for any use
that would violate Township, State, or Federal laws.

Procedures for Applications and Review and Decisions on Applications.

a. Applications to be made to Township Clerk. Applications for facility
usage shall be made to, and decided upon, by the Township Clerk. The
Clerk may refer the application for review and recommendations to
other Township departments as appropriate to ensure the ability of a
facility to host the proposed event, and to address any public health,
safety, and welfare concerns.

b. Application Availability and Submission Format. Applications shall be
available at the Township Hall and ...., and may be submitted as hard
copies in-person or by mail to the Township Clerk’s office, or via e-mail

to the Township Clerk.

c. Application Content. Applications shall include the following
information:




Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

VI.

1. Name and contact information of the applicant (the “User”), who
shall attend the event and be responsible for compliance with this
Policy;

ii. Name and contact information of any organization on behalf of
which the application is being submitted (if applicable);

iii. Date and time of the event;

1v. A brief description of the nature of the event to be held;

v. Whether food/beverages will be served;

vi. Anticipated number of attendees:;

vil. An agreement, signed by the User, acknowledging receipt of this
Policy and any facility-specific policies; agreeing to abide by all
applicable policies and the terms of the application; and agreeing
to hold the Township harmless as provided for in this Policy.

. Timing of Application. Applications to use a facility may not be

submitted more than twelve (12) weeks in advance of the desired usage
date. To guarantee processing, applications must be submitted no closer
than five (5) days before the desired usage date. Applications submitted
less than five (5) days before the desired usage date are not guaranteed
to be processed in time for the event.

Frequency and Duration of Usage. No facilities may be used by the same
User, or on behalf of the same organization, more than x (x) time per
calendar month/year of for more than xx consecutive days. [if the
Township wants to include such a restriction]

Priority. Township use of its own facilities shall have priority over
private uses. Facilities are available to private Users on a first-come,
first-served basis, based on the date of the Township Clerk’s approval of
a complete application that complies with all terms of this Policy,
including payment of any required fees and security deposits.

. Limitation and Denial of Applications. The Township reserves the right

to limit and/or deny requests for facility usage. In reviewing a request,
the Township shall consider factors including, but not limited to: (a) the
applicant’s history of compliance with facility use policies; (b) the
conformity of the application to this Policy; (c) the consistency of the
proposed event with the facility’s design, capacity, and available
furniture and equipment; (d) the availability of the facility; and (e)
whether the event would conflict with the administration or needs of the
Township government.

General Policies Applicable to All Facilities.




Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

a.

Compliance with Laws and Policies, All persons using a Township
facility shall comply with this Policy, all applicable ordinances, rules,
and regulations of Holly Township, and all applicable state and federal
laws. The User is responsible for ensuring compliance by all persons
participating in an event.

Non-Interference with Facility. All activities of the User shall be
confined to the interior of the Room, unless approved in advance, and
shall not interfere with the primary purpose of the building or the use
of the other portions of the building used by others.

Fees & Security Deposit: The Township Board may adopt, by resolution,
a schedule of fees and/or security deposits for any or all facilities, which
may include a schedule of cancellation fees and terms for the use and
return of a security deposit. All required fees and security deposits shall
be paid in full at the time that the facility usage is approved. A facility
usage approval is not complete until all fees and deposits are paid. The
facility will remain available to other applicants until fees and deposits

are paid.

Tnsurance: Insurance is required for any facility usage that will feature
an inflatable device, interactive entertainment, professional catering of
food, or the service of alcohol. The User (or User’s vendor, if applicable),
shall provide a Certificate of Liability Insurance with minimum limits
of $1 million each occurrence and $1 million aggregate. The Township
shall be listed as an additional insured on an endorsement. The
Township must receive policy verification, including dates of coverage
and financial limits, within one week after the date a facility use permit
has been approved (or at the time of facility usage approval, if less than
a week before the event date).

Hold Harmless Agreement: The User and any group they represent
hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless Holly Township, its
elected and appointed officials employees, and volunteers and others
working on behalf of Holly Township, against any and all claims,
demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected therewith, and for
any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against the
Township by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death
and/or property damages, including loss of use thereof, which arises out
of or is in any way connected or associated with the use of a Holly

Township facility.

Room Capacities: Room capacities must be adhered to. The Township
Clerk shall maintain a list of room capacities for all facilities as




Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

determined by the Fire Marshal available under this Policy, including
any variations in room capacity based on room set-up. If facility capacity
is exceeded, the User shall be responsible for taking measures to reduce
attendance of the event to conform with the posted Room capacity. The
Township reserves the right to act to extinguish any threats to public
health, safety, and welfare and/or to otherwise bring the event into
compliance with this Policy. The User shall be liable for any costs
imcurred and/or any damage sustained to Township property.

g. Damage / Prohibited Items. The cost of any damage to the building
and/or grounds shall be withheld by the Township from any security
deposit, and any costs for repair of excessive wear and tear shall be
charged to the User. No nails, tacks, staples, adhesive materials or other
material that may physically damage any Township structure or
property may be used in a facility. Use of glitter, confetti, and other
similar items is prohibited. The User shall remove and properly dispose
of any decorations at the conclusion of the event, and is responsible for
ensuring that the room is clean and free of damage.

h. Chaperones for Minors: One chaperone at least 21 years of age must be
provided for every 10 minors at any facility.

1. Alcoholic Beverages. No alcoholic beverages are allowed in facilities
unless the User has provided the Township Clerk proof of proper
permitting/licensing from the State of Michigan and liquor liability
insurance.

J. Non-Smoking Policy. All Township facilities, including the facilities, are
smoke-free, vape-free, and tobacco-free facilities.

k. Animals. No animals are allowed in Rooms, Township Buildings, or on
Township properties, except: 1) police dogs; and 2) service animals, as
defined by Title IT and Title IIT of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
subject to applicable Township Code requirements, unless exempted
from such requirements by law.

. No Indicators of Township Endorsement or Sponsorship. No User or any
other person/organization shall use the name, address, contact
information, seals, or other imagery of Holly Township or its facilities
as their official address or contact information, and they shall not
publicize their event in such a manner as to imply Township
endorsement or sponsorship. The Township shall not promote or appear
to promote any non-Township events in the Room(s), and shall not favor,
bromote, or appear to favor or promote, any views or opinions expressed

4



Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

VIIL.

during events in the Room(s) or of any User, organization, or advertiser
or attendee of an event.

m. Assignment/Transfer; No usage approval shall be assigned or

‘1,

transferred without the Township Clerk’s consent.

Cancellation: Cancellation by a User must be made at least two (2)
weeks in advance of the reservation date, unless the event is
rescheduled. If notice is given with less than 2 weeks notice, the security
deposit shall be forfeited to the Township. The Township reserves the
right to cancel any Room usage for any reason in its sole discretion. In
cases where the Township cancels a facility usage and suitable
replacement facilities arve not available or the event cannot be
rescheduled, the Township shall refund any fee and security deposit to

the User.

Policy Enforcement/Penalties. Failure to comply with this Policy may
result in any or all of the following: 1) forfeiture of some or all of any fee
and/or security deposit; 2) cancellation of the Room usage fee; 3)
immediate termination of the Room usage, without notice or warning;
4) immediate removal of individuals from the premises by Township; 5)
payment to the Township of the costs of replacement in excess of the
security deposit for any and all destroyed, damaged or missing
Township property caused by the User, User’s guests, independent
contractors, or any other person; 6) payment of costs in excess of the
security deposit for the time of Township staff in bringing an event into
compliance with this Policy; 7) rejection of all future requests to use the
Township’s Rooms and other facilities; 8) criminal prosecution for any
violations of laws or ordinances; and, 9) any other civil remedies to which
the Township may be entitled in law or equity.

Facility-Specific Policies. The Township Board may establish such
facility-specific regulations as deemed necessary pertaining to the
operation of facilities under their control, which are consistent with this
Policy. If any facility-specific policies conflict with this Policy, this Policy

shall control.

Disputes and Appeals. Questions and disputes regarding this Policy or its

application shall be brought to the Township Supervisor. If a Room usage
application is denied, the reasons for denial will be provided by the Township
Clerk in writing. Any applicant may appeal the Township Clerk’s decision to
the Township Supervisor, who shall issue a written decision on the appeal
within ten (10) business days. The Township Supervisor’s decision shall be

5



Holly Township
Facility Use Policy

final decision. The Township Supervisor may affirm, reverse, or modify the
Township Clerk’s decision based upon a finding that the decision was: any or
all of: 1) arbitrary and capricious; 2) an abuse of discretion; 3) based on an
erroneous interpretation or application of facts, this Policy, or any other
applicable law or regulation, including a) whether granting Room usage
approval would threaten the public health, safety, and welfare; and/or b)
whether denying approval would cause the applicant to be without any means
of communication,



